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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NE|E R
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANCI- )
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AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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WEBSITE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 478 22

REVENUE Wz
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“Operating amidst moderate global economic
growth, the Group has utilized its core strengths
and leadership position in niche research-and-
development-based manufacturing to match
customers’ growth initiatives. Expansion and
geographical adjustment of manufacturing activities
in response to customers’ business needs were the
main drivers behind the year’s turnover growth.”
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| am pleased to report that the year ended 31 March 2015 was
another year of income and profit growth reflecting our ability
to deliver consistent value for our shareholders. Importantly,
we have achieved resilient results through economic cycles and
market turbulence by upholding our growth strategy, focusing on
the basics of product innovation and manufacturing, and staying
close to the needs of our customers.

RESULTS

The Group’s overall results for the year were encouraging.
Turnover grew to a new record of approximately HK$2,378
million, representing an increase of approximately 23.7% over
the previous year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company grew
approximately 36.8% year on year to approximately HK$92
million (2014: approximately HK$68 million).

Basic earnings per share for the year increased by approximately
36.8% to approximately HK13.41
approximately HK9.80 cents for the last financial year.

cents, compared with

The Group has been adamant in maintaining its principle of
prudent financial management in the course of development.
During the year, while the Group’s businesses resulted in
record-high revenues, our Group did not have significant
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

OUR STRATEGIES

Long-term planning is crucial to enable the Group to achieve
sustainable development.

Manufacturing Business

The Group has focused on consolidating its facilities in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). This is due to the
continuing, significant increases in labor costs exasperated
by customer pressure on profit margins in an increasingly
competitive world retail market.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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At the same time, an accelerated, customer driven, expansion
plan has initiated in South and Central Viethnam. This has been
carefully planned and is based on a number of factors including:
experience in operating a growing factory complex in Vietham;
lower cost work force; a good cost effective environment; and
superior industrial zones (i.e. VSIP — Vietnam Singapore Industrial
Park). Additionally, the Vietnam work environment is highly
conducive to both acquiring and retaining top management
personnel, essential to operating factories at a world class
standard.

Although rugged and children/infant footwear will continue to
be part of the overall footwear mix, athletic (both functional and
fashionable) and casual footwear will grow substantially. As the
worldwide fashion trend clearly point out, athletic footwear is
the focus of major footwear growth and will continue to be so
in the near future.

Establishing manufacturing facilities in China, Vietham (south
and Central) and Cambodia indicates better risk management
to its customers. By diversifying factory locations orders can be
adjusted in case of any extraordinary circumstances. In addition,
favorable duties and advantages are beneficial to our multi-
national customer base.

Retailing Business

The Group’s retail business was set up as part of the Group’s
long term diversification strategy. Its operations consist of baby
and children’s footwear as well as other complementing products
under its house brand Fiona’s Prince.

Apart from furthering product development and brand building
strategies, the Group will also strive to upgrade its internal
systems and data analysis tools. In fiscal 2015, store layouts for
Fiona’s Prince have been upgraded to better reflect its high-end
image.

Additionally, the introduction of prestigious international brands
to the unit’s network under licensed partnership agreements
has helped expand the range of products carried in retail points
and enhanced the overall brand’s image. Together with growing
online sales, the segment now has all the necessary components
to sustain solid brand development and steady growth.
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Going forward, we remain focused on improving the long-
term profitability and the competitiveness of our established
retail business. While continuing to close low-yielding stores,
we plan to modestly expand our retail network in stand-alone
stores in high-end shopping malls if and when conditions are
favorable. We also see strong growth possibilities for online
sales particularly in the PRC. Our priority now is to further
the brand equity that we have already built among the PRC’s
upwardly mobile consumers so as to differentiate our brand from
competitors and to preserve our price premium.

OUTLOOK

As a leader in footwear manufacturing, the Group continues to
pursue sustainable development by taking a prudent approach
to business planning and adopting a flexible multi-country
production base strategy.

The emergence of new opportunities also brings new challenges.
The Group therefore copes with market changes by implementing
its development strategies in a pragmatic and prudent approach.

High labor costs and an aging labor force will continue to drag
down the market share of other manufacturers. This trend will
further strengthen our competitiveness in the market, which will
also be supported by the anticipated ratification of the Trans-
Pacific Partnership, expected to greatly reduce entry barriers
to the US, particularly for our footwear products manufactured
in Vietham. With competitive pricing and flexible production,
delivering short lead times and smaller batch sizes, the Group
continues to compete favorably with other producers.

Manufacturing Business

Short-term goal - Improving operating efficiency and
strengthening production capability

All manufacturing players in the PRC will inevitably have to tackle
an increasingly difficult production environment of rising labor
and welfare costs. As it faces this huge challenge, the Group
has been putting efforts into improving operating efficiency
and strengthening production capability. It will also continue
to implement strict cost control measures in the year ahead to
preserve margins and sustain growth.
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The Group believes that the current tough operating environment
presents a window of opportunity for enterprises possessing a
leading competitive edge to seize more market share as industry
consolidation continues.

Mid-to-long term goals - Infrastructure and long-term
development

In view of the inexorable rise in labor and other operating costs
in the PRC, the Group’s strategy has been to scale down its
operations there, while exploring acquisition opportunities to
expand production facilities in the neighborhood of its existing
southern Vietnam plant.

To this end, in February 2015, the Group entered into an
agreement to acquire leasehold land to extend the factory site in
southern Vietnam by obtaining the land use rights of an adjacent
land parcel. The acquisition is expected to be completed in
the second quarter of 2015, providing flexibility to build new
infrastructure with potential to further increase the production
capacity in southern Vietnam.

Moreover, on 30 April 2015, the Group has accepted an offer for
the lease of land within Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park Il in
Ho Chi Minh City, southern Vietnam, which will be used for the
development of additional footwear production facilities.

At the same time, one of our key initiatives in the next three to
five years is to set up new production facilities in central Vietnam.
We have identified a site in an industrial zone in Quang Ngai, for
this purpose. In the second quarter of 2015, the first phase of
this new production center was set up for trial running.

We target to commence commercial production in central
Vietnam in the third quarter of 2015, adding new capacities
to complement our existing facilities in the south. The central
Vietnam plant is well placed to provide our customers in the
region with a highly compelling fulfillment proposition.

The Vietnam facilities will enable brand owners to import finished
products into European countries on a duty-free basis and
to diversify their sourcing base. With additional production
facilities in central Vietnam, the Group can further enhance its
competitiveness.
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In addition to these organic growth initiatives, we will continue
to evaluate potential acquisitions that can bring complementary
technologies to the Group and strengthen our position in key
markets. Management will remain prudent in its assessment of
acquisition opportunities and will only pursue those investments
where the prospects for adding long-term value to the Group are
clear, and where the valuation of the business is not excessive.

Retailing Business
Steady growth of the retail business

The Group takes a prudent view of the retail market in the
coming year. Domestic consumption is expected to become
more rational while traditional department stores will be subject
to the substantial impact of e-commerce. In Hong Kong,
consumer sentiments remain sluggish while rental and labor
costs as a proportion of distribution costs continue to be high,
resulting in high operating costs and squeezed profitability for
retail operators. It will be a greater challenge for this unit to
sustain a high rate of same-store sales growth given the higher
base following solid cumulative growth over the past few years.
Nevertheless, in view of the strong market position of its brand
in the mid- to high-end market, the Group believes that the retail
segment will be able to achieve reasonably good performance
despite lackluster market sentiments. The way forward is to
uphold the principle of delivering “sophisticated styles with top
quality” through product innovation.

The outlook for the retail segment remains challenging, with
consumer sentiments likely to be constrained for some time by
slowing economic growth in the PRC. Closure of underperforming
stores has been ongoing in order to focus our resources on
standalone stores in high-end locations.

Network optimization is also ongoing in Hong Kong, and efforts
are put into the improvement of efficiency and profitability of
individual stores.

With an adjusted retail network, the Group can better control
sales expenses and enhance overall operating efficiency.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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We remain highly focused on improving the long-term profitability
and competitiveness of our retail business. While continuing
to close low-yielding stores, we expect to modestly expand
our retail network on a net basis in the coming financial year
as more standalone stores in high-end shopping malls and
exclusive locations are opened. Our priority now is to further the
brand equity we have built among the PRC’s upwardly mobile
consumers so as to differentiate our brand from competitors and
to preserve our price premium.

Apart from the furtherance of product development and brand
building strategies, the Group will also put efforts into upgrading
its internal system and data analysis tools.

The Group believes that the key to success lies in an achievable
mission, a clear direction, high-caliber team members and quality
products. With an aim of becoming an omni-channel brand
operator, the Group will engage in unceasing brand building
work while continuing to optimize its retail operations in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

The unit aims to bring stable long-term returns for shareholders.
Management will closely monitor its operations and refine the
segment’s business strategies as appropriate.

OVERALL

Looking forward, we are cautiously optimistic about the demand
for our footwear products as economic recovery in the US and
Europe appears increasingly sustainable. We expect to grow
our business further in the coming year, especially in light of the
better-than-expected economic rebound in the US in the second
half of the year under review. We tentatively expect the pick-up
in orders experienced in recent months to continue through to
the year ahead, barring a sudden drop in consumer sentiments
arising from existing geopolitical issues. We will continue to
closely monitor any risks arising from such events in order to
minimize their impact on our operations.

In addition to lingering conservatism among some customers,
key risks and challenges for the Group continue to be labor costs
and supply, notwithstanding the success we achieved during the
year with capacity optimization and relocation.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The Group will adhere to its core values and develop its business
in a prudent manner so as to achieve stable long-term growth.
With its veteran management team and flexible and responsive
mechanisms, the Group is confident of sustaining its competitive
edges in an ever-changing market.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank my fellow directors, senior management
and all our staff for their performance and support. | would also
like to thank all our shareholders, suppliers, business partners
and customers, whose support has contributed to our success
in the past year.

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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IR am Mo AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group has ended the fiscal year with an encouraging
financial performance. This set of satisfactory results reflects
the manufacturing segment’s efforts to improve and capture
efficiencies from the production base in Southeast Asia, which
has been expanded to outweigh the scaled-down operation in
the PRC. The retail segment was also able to contain its loss
amidst subdued consumption sentiments in the PRC.

The Group is delighted to report another record turnover on
the back of demand-driven capacity expansion. During the
year ended 31 March 2015, turnover increased approximately
23.7% year on year to approximately HK$2,378 million (2014:
approximately HK$1,923 million). This turnover growth was
accounted for by an approximately 4.6% rise in the average
selling price (“ASP”) and an approximately 18.5% increase in
business volume (pairs).

Material prices stabilized in general, with some commodity
items showing a slight price drop, helped further by reduced
material usage in the production centers in southern Vietnam and
Cambodia as the operation of these facilities matured further.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the other hand, labor costs in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) were driven to even higher levels by additional social
security requirements and employee benefits. Salaries for the
workforce in southern Vietnam were also on a mild uptrend.
Salaries and wages, including benefits and allowances, increased
by approximately 30.8% and approximately 15.9%, in the
PRC and Vietnam respectively during the year. Total labor and
salaries for the manufacturing segment, including allowances
and other benefits, increased approximately 33.9% to account
for approximately 28.0% (2014: approximately 26.1%) of cost of
sales, or approximately 24.2% (2014: approximately 22.5%) of
the total manufacturing turnover.

Subcontracting charges increased to approximately HK$105
million (2014: approximately HK$74 million), or approximately
4.4% (2014: approximately 3.9%) of turnover, owing to strong
growth of orders from certain customers.

As a result of impairment on certain old facilities, as well as the
relocation of certain manufacturing operations from the PRC
to southern Vietnam and the subsequent scaling down of PRC
facilities in Jiangxi, impairment was made during the year.

Having taken into account of the impairment loss on old facilities
of approximately HK$9.8 million (2014: nil), as well as a gain
on fair value changes of investment properties in the PRC and
Renminbi (“RMB”)-denominated derivative financial instruments
of approximately HK$1.38 million (2014: gain of approximately
HK$0.77 million), net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company increased by approximately 36.8% to approximately
HK$92 million (2014: approximately HK$68 million).

Earnings per share for the year increased by approximately
36.8% vyear on year to approximately HK13.41 cents (2014:
approximately HK9.80 cents). In anticipation of ongoing strong
cash generation from the manufacturing segment and the
Group’s healthy financial position, the Group pledges to continue
its dividend policy of sharing results with shareholders.
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Accordingly, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend and special dividend of HK4.2 cents (2014: HK2.2
cents) and HK2.0 cents (2014: HK1.0 cent) respectively, which
together with the interim dividend of HK2.8 cents (2014: HK3.3
cents), represents a payout ratio of approximately 67.1% (2014
approximately 66.3%).

Healthy financial ratios were maintained during the year:

° Debtors’ turnover was reduced from 46 days for the year
ended 31 March 2014 to 37 days for the year ended 31
March 2015;

° Stock turnover increased from 77 days to 84 days as a
result of facilities expansion;

° Strong liquidity with net cash in hand of approximately
HK$436 million (2014: approximately HK$424 million) as
at 31 March 2015;

° Quick ratio changed from 1.33 as at 31 March 2014 to 1.12
as at 31 March 2015.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Operating amidst moderate global economic growth, the Group
has utilized its core strengths and leadership position in niche
research-and-development-based manufacturing to match
customers’ growth initiatives. Expansion and geographical
adjustment of manufacturing activities in response to customers’
business needs were the main drivers behind the year’s turnover
growth.

In the face of surging rental and other operating costs, the retail

segment has also taken steps to streamline its network and
operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Manufacturing Business

As at the year-end date, the Group’s facilities, each located
and designed to accommodate different product development
and manufacturing requirements, had a total of 44 production
lines: 20 in southern Vietnam, 10 in Cambodia, and 14 in the
PRC, comprising 6 in Zhongshan, 6 in Zhuhai and 2 in Jiangxi
Province. These facilities, aggregating to an annual capacity of
around 25 million pairs, were approximately 85% utilized (2014:
approximately 80%). Research and development (“R&D”) centers
have been added to southern Vietnam and Cambodia for certain
customers to supplement the product development activities in
the PRC. Two outsole factories are also in operation in southern
Vietnam and Cambodia.

Southeast Asia grew further in its contribution to the Group’s
output. The southern Vietham production center was ramped up
to full operation to cater to customer orders to meet fast-growing
Asian market demands. The further maturity of this center’s
production lines has also contributed to higher efficiency and
thus higher output. The commissioning of first-phase facilities
in central Vietnam will add further momentum to this production
base. During the year, Vietnam contributed approximately 56.3%
of total production (2014: approximately 48.0%) in terms of pairs
of footwear, an increase of approximately 8.3% year on year.
Cambodia has also expanded and matured further, producing
approximately 12.5% of total output (2014: approximately
11.5%).

The facilities in the PRC were restructured to cater to footwear
production in smaller batch sizes and with shorter delivery lead
time. Output from the PRC center accounted for approximately
31.2% of total volume (2014: approximately 40.5%) during the
year.

The geographical market mix shifted further to Asia. For the
manufacturing segment, turnover contribution of both the
United States (the “US”) and European markets dropped
to approximately 31.7% (2014: approximately 43.2%) and
approximately 32.5% (2014: approximately 33.3%). Growth
markets including the PRC, South Korea, Australia and Russia
drove the contribution of other markets to approximately 35.8%
(2014: approximately 23.5%).
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Ath-leisure and premium casual footwear continued to be in
fashion and a core product category for the Group, accounting
for approximately 54.9% of turnover (2014: approximately
51.6%), while babies’ and children’s footwear and rugged
products generated approximately 34.2% (2014: approximately
40.7%) and approximately 10.9% (2014: approximately 7.7 %)
of turnover respectively. The Group’s multi-location production
platform has enabled it to arrange production flexibly in response
to product trends and customer preferences.

Major customers for the year included New Balance, Clarks,
Skechers, Asics and Wolverine, which in aggregate contributed
approximately 85.6% (2014: approximately 82.4%) of total
turnover. The Southeast Asian facilities are dedicated to
serving those high-growth brand customers which require
superior design and customized services to explore and further
penetration of markets with quality products.

In view of the strong demand for output from the Vietnam and
Cambodia centers, the Group has expedited the plan to extend
the current factory site in southern Vietnam by obtaining the
land use rights of an adjacent land parcel. On 30 April 2015,
the Group also entered into a letter of offer for leasing another
plot of land within Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park Il in Ho Chi
Minh City, southern Vietnam.

In central Vietnam, the first phase of the new facilities currently
houses 4-6 production lines with more to be added upon
maturity of these new lines. Second-phase development works
were embarked on in May 2015 in response to customers’
demand for new capacities.

The operation for outsole production commenced in Cambodia
during the year, furthering the Group’s capability of providing
tailored services to customers. Another outsole factory also
started operation in Vietnam in September 2014. R&D centers
were also established in southern Vietnam and Cambodia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Manufacturing facilities, supported by R&D centers and outsole
factories, form a one-stop service production hub for customers
looking for quality products, on-time delivery and reasonable
prices. Customers were also drawn to the Southeast Asian
production centers to capture the business potential of the
anticipated implementation of the Trans-Pacific Partnership.
Confident of the ongoing development of its Southeast Asian
operations, the Group will continue to explore other strategic
partnership opportunities to add further value for its existing and
potential customers.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, for the manufacturing segment,
the Group also received gross rental income of approximately
HK$7,291,000 (2014: approximately HK$6,828,000) mainly for
the leasing of part of the existing manufacturing plant located in
Zhuhai, the PRC, to independent third parties under operating
leases arrangements. Fair value gains on revaluation of these
investment properties of approximately HK$4,091,000 (2014:
approximately HK$15,298,000) were recorded for the year under
review.

Retailing Business

The retail business was set up as a part of the Group’s long-
term diversification strategy. Its operations mainly comprise the
retailing of babies’ and children’s footwear and other products
under its house brand Fiona’s Prince.

Facing a generally lackluster consumer market in the PRC
and operating on a downsized network, the retail unit was
able to achieve a largely stable turnover with a slight drop of
approximately 4.7% to approximately HK$51,604,000 (2014:
approximately HK$54,140,000).

In a move to optimize the segment’s retail network in the PRC
and Hong Kong, the Group continued to review and adjust the
locations of its stores. Following the closure of underperforming
shops, the network comprised 30 shops (2014: 46) in the PRC
and 5 shops (2014: 4) in Hong Kong, aggregating to a total of
35 shops (2014: 50) as at 31 March 2015.
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Despite a reduced retail scale, the network enhancement
program has yielded an approximately 20.7% increase in same-
store sales in the PRC, where consumption has been subdued
over the past year. In Hong Kong, same-store sales showed a
decline of approximately 13.8% as a result of the political events
and anti-tourist activities within the year.

The introduction of prestigious international brands to the unit’'s
network under partnership arrangements has helped expand
the range of products carried in the retail points, and has
enhanced the network’s overall image. Together with online
sales, which are poised to benefit from the PRC’s growing trend
for e-commerce, the segment has all the necessary components
in place to sustain solid brand development.

Owing to a modification of the unit’s pricing strategy, and as a
result of impairment of HK$7.9 million on certain slow-moving
inventories, the gross profit margin for the retail segment
decreased to approximately 56.8% from approximately 66.1% a
year earlier. Nevertheless, with ongoing cost-control efforts, the
segment was able to reduce its loss incurred.

The business incurred a loss of approximately HK$22.9 million
(2014: approximately HK$28.3 million). Management will continue
to exercise prudence in the further development of this business
unit, but is confident of its potential to contribute a stable source
of income to the Group in future. Together with a growing
trend for online sales, the segment is confident of its long-term
development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operation by internally and
generated cashflow and banking facilities provided by its bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$436 million (2014: approximately
HK$424 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is substantially debt-free. As at 31 March 2015, the
Group had banking facilities amounted to an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$99 million (2014: approximately HK$99 million)
with various banks. Out of the trade and overdraft banking
facilities of approximately HK$99 million (2014: approximately
HK$99 million) in Hong Kong being granted to the Group,
approximately HK$3 million (2014: approximately HK$5 million)
had been utilized as at 31 March 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the current ratio was
approximately 1.63 (2014: approximately 1.81) based on current
assets of approximately HK$1,016 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$622 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 1.12 (2014: approximately 1.33).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having
considered the major expansion plans of the Group, including
Vietnam and Cambodia in the next two to three years, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity
to meet its current and future working capital requirements on
its operations and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the RMB
and the US dollars (“US$”). It is the Group’s policy to adopt
a conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure
management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate or the London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate.
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The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimize the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivative financial instruments, principally forward currency
contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes only, for
hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s receivables
and payables.

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose from
the net cash flows and the net working capital translation of its
PRC subsidiaries. The management of the Group will actively
hedge the foreign currency exposures through natural hedges,
forward contracts and options, if consider necessary. The
management of currency risk is centralised in the headquarter
of the Group in Hong Kong.

Capital Structure

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$1,097
million as at 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately HK$1,042
million). As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings (2014: nil), resulting nil% (2014
nil%) of the shareholders equity.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 18,000
employees as at 31 March 2015. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels
and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options and awarded shares may also be
granted in accordance to the terms of the Group’s approved
share option scheme and share award scheme, respectively.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We continue to strive to make a positive impact to our society
by actively implementing Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)
principles into all activities. As one of the more prominent
multinational enterprises operating on a global basis, the Group
aspires to create a harmonious society through cultivating
responsible corporate citizenship.

Our corporate philosophy has always emphasised respect
for people, contribution to society, creation of a fair working
environment ethical behaviour, long term relationships and trust
in business relationships. By organising voluntary services,
donations and sponsorships, we hope to fulfill our social
responsibilities and offer assistance to those in need.

OUR CORE VALUES

At the core of our CSR initiatives is the 3 “P” —
and Profit. We strongly believe that by integrating economic,
environmental and social initiatives into our business strategy,

People, Planet

we can achieve our business goals and increase long-term
shareholder value.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Group is guided by one Code of Conduct and committed
to the goals of: using resources responsibly, reducing waste,
supporting workers’ rights, and improving the welfare of our
workers and the communities in which we operate.
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We bind our suppliers and business partners to these same
principles and goals. Specifically, we only seek partners that
share our commitment to the development of a leaner, greener,
more empowered and equitable supply chain, and will hold
those partners accountable for the following specific minimum
standards:

° Employment is voluntary

o Working hours are not excessive

o Employees are age 16 or older

° Regular employment is provided

° The company does not discriminate

° The workplace is healthy and safe

° Freedom of association is respected

o Environmental impact is minimised

o Compensation is timely paid

o Harassment and abuse are not tolerated

WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Workplace health and safety remains our number one priority.
The Group consistently meets all applicable standards
and regulations, while also striving to develop a culture of
empowerment among employees so that they are involved in
creating and contributing to a safe and healthy work environment.

We also continued to hold regular meetings with employees

to review environmental health and safety issues with our
employees and to facilitate direct communication with directors.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Supportive Workplace

During the financial year of 2014/2015, the Vietnam factory had
provided on-job training and organized various training sessions
including training on company’s internal policies, first-aids,
food safety, kitchen management and operation, employees
complaints filing, recruitment, anti-harassment policies, gender
equality policy etc.. All new joiners have received training on
internal policies on their first day.

Work and healthy life is important for a balancing work life.
The Group cares for the workers’ health, the Vietnam Factory
offered free of charge body check to all employees periodically at
voluntary basis. During the reporting period, we have organized
health fair, free body check and health talk in October and
December 2014. Throughout the activity, health talks were
organized in December 2014.Women staff were invited to attend
the seminar on the unmarried pregnant, sexually transmitted
disease and other women diseases.

The Group continues to uphold the government laws and
provide comprehensive support to pregnant employees. Vietnam
factory has set up comprehensive written policies on pregnant
employees which fully comply with the local regulation. Special
color staff cards are assigned to pregnant employees or women
who carry children aged below 1 year old to easily distinguish
employees who need special and careful care. The Human
Resources and Human Right Department has maintained a list
of pregnant employees/women who carry a child aged below 1
year old.

EMEFNIERE

R-ZE—W/ —ZT-RAFWRFEHH - ¥
R FE R BE I LA TR FIIRE - B
RANBHEER 2 RmEe BEEELE
B BB TR ATHE  REEHRE &
I FERREFFI - AARABEIRNE A5
EREEZ AR BERE o

TFERENEEHFETHELERIFFTES
SERBOBETRE FHitdmmEERREEE
TREHEBBRUEENRESEBRE - NREHMA -
BAE—FT-NOFTART-ASTRES 2
EoRRhERRFEE - BEZHT  REFEE
DR-_F—ME+-AR1T - KEBTERNE
BRAKRERS  EREEMLZIERBHEE

AEERERTRMERLAEZETREEZE
X BERECAI U BEZETNEEEMK
R TENAEMEELR RETZHHITE
BRIk ORBEMNET - E2E TR BRI
ATHENLZEEREHEENETE - ANE
REAEBPIEE —MIHERET HER1R
SATHEN 2 B E -

FEEXKEEERAT F, 2015 25



rEAEaME

Safe Workplace

In the Vietnam factory, 100 employees received training on First
Aid and obtained the Certificate of First Aid in the financial year
of 2014/2015. 21 employees had attended the safety training on
the handling of chemicals, and all of them are qualified to handle
chemicals in the factory.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Happy Workplace

As employee happiness may affect the overall factory productivity
and staff turnover, we began to see an opportunity to get
engaged in this complex but important issue. We provided
innovative solutions to encourage employee happiness; we
began working with them to learn from their experience, share
best practices, and scale efforts to promote a happy workplace
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2014 International Woman Day 2014 Mid-Autumn Festival Celebration

—ET-MEHERELZA
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for company employees. We believe employee happiness KINREENEBIANEEZEREZZE - ME
can have positive direct and indirect impacts on employee BMER T —MFAEREANRIT T RHREERSE
engagement, lost time and productivity. The Vietnam factory ) ERUREURBIRGELZR - EEERSMNE
organized Mid-Autumn Festival Celebration, Christmas Party WEE) - HEHE T HBFEERZ -

as well as International Woman Day in the factory in 2014. The

Management also participated in the celebration and had a joyful

moment with the local employees.

2014 Christmas Party
— T EERY

Library and fitness facilities are next to the staff canteen. EEEIESRBEMETERE  ETIRNZER
Employees are free to use those facilities during their leisure time. REEEFERAZESRHE AEEEREGINETR
Accommodation and transportation are provided to overseas HEBRRBE

employees.
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ENVIRONMENT

As we engage in business development, we are aware that
addressing environmental concerns is an importing issue for
contributing to the continual development of society. Vietnam is
in the tropical monsoon climate area. During the financial year of
2014/2015, no significant natural disasters occurred. Although
the factory is located in the temperate climate area, the factory
has implemented different methods to reduce environmental
impact arising from its operations.

We actively develop green policies and allocate resources to
projects that prevent environmental pollution and restore the
environment for years in order to strike a balance between
sustainable corporate development and environmental protection.
We consider the future of global environment depends on tackling
climate change; sustainable use of resources in conserving
energy and waste management. Through its business activities,
the Group is aiming to create sustainable environmental value.

Conserve Energy

We understand that energy consumption is equivalent to
greenhouse gas emission to a certain extent. Reducing energy
consumption helps manage our carbon footprint. Thus, the
factory puts much effort on energy conservation improvement,
i.e. electricity and heavy oil consumption, not only to save the
production cost, but also to protect the environment. Over
93 per cent of the electricity was purchased from the local
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TERAEEEE

power station, and an estimated 7 per cent was produced
from heavy oil. In addition, the Vietnam plant has been using
environmental friendly construction facilities such as renewable
energy technology of geothermal heat pumps, energy-saving
insulation walls and natural lighting in production areas to
build a low-carbon green industrial environment for sustainable
development. These facilities enable us to save energy and
decrease carbon emission, thus further reducing the impact of
production processes on the environment.

In Vietnam, to conserve energy, the factory has proposed a “no
lighting policy” during the lunch hour. No lift was equipped in the
factory to encourage employees to do exercises and promote
energy conservation. Traditional light bulbs are gradually being
replaced by energy-saving lamps.

MARKETPLACE

The core principles and objectives concerning the marketplace
are to develop a long-term relationship with our customers
and suppliers, to provide the quality-assured products to our
customers, to broaden the suppliers’ and customers’ base, and
to trade with fairness and equity.
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As a shoes-manufacturing company

We focus on the quality as well as the social responsibility of
our suppliers.

As an international company

The internationality of a company not only reflects on its customer
base, it is also represented by the diversity of suppliers. We
know that stakeholders, such as customers and people in the
community, care about the quality and stability of our suppliers.

COMMUNITY

We manage the social impact of our operations on the
marketplace to create a positive value on the development of
sustainable communities in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Vietnam
and Cambodia. Apart from daily business operation and
shareholders’ interest, we work on community development and
provide support to local charities by organizing regular charitable
events and making donations.
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Volunteer Work

We focus on the elderly and children. The former contributed
their effort to the community and the latter are the future of
the community. In November 2014, employees of the factory
organized four home visits for the Elderly and Orphanage. Food
and daily necessities were provided to them.

Throughout the financial year of 2014/2015, home visits were
organized quarterly and 100 employees from the Vietnam factory
has attended voluntary work. The voluntary work was a success
as it made a positive impact on the Elderly and Orphanage’s
lives. As the case for the Orphanage who often had no other role
models to look up to, the volunteer work offer factory employees
to listen, talk and play with the Orphanage.

Community Contribution

We support our industry for a better development as a shoe
manufacturer. In the financial year of 2014/2015, we donated
HK$39,000 to Two Ten Footwear Foundation (Two Ten). Two
Ten is a Non-Governmental Organization (NGO) located in U.S.
who is committed to advocating for positive change in the
footwear industry.
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Two Ten

Hong Kong
Christian
Service

EBEEH
REE

We also care about sustainability in the local community as part
of our corporate responsibility. For the year ended 31 March
2015, we also donated HK$29,000 to different local NGOs,
including Hong Kong Blood Cancer Foundation, Medecins Sans
Frontieres, and Mother’s Choice. Some useful materials, such as
environmental-friendly bags, calendars, stationery and clothes,
were donated to the Hong Kong Christian Service and Christian
Action to support their activities.

ONGOING COMMITMENT

Good corporate social policies are not only desirable but make
good business sense; investments made today for our people
and communities are for the benefit of our world tomorrow.

In the coming years, we will continue to measure the growth
and development of the Group within the context of the 3 “P” of
People, Planet and Profit.

By achieving this, the Group remains committed to serving the
community and further improving the quality of life for the people
we work with, as well as the environment which we share. The
Directors strongly believe that it requires a sustained effort on
all of these fronts to secure the long-term sustainability of our
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board is committed to ensuring the self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a Board with high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Board and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company regularly reviews the corporate governance
procedures and developments of the Company. The corporate
governance duties have been delegated by the Board to the
audit committee of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee in relation to corporate governance include developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to enhance and to ensure the corporate governance practices
of the Company are in line with the relevant requirements. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the period under review,
except that:
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) of the Company
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and CEO of the Company should be clearly established and set
out in writing. The roles of the chairman and the CEO of the
Company are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey. The Directors will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company. The Directors consider that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors
and the management of Company and believe that this structure
will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2015.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible
and effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/her
duty in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. During the year under review,
the members of the Board included:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)
among the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee
members at Board committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in the following table:

Name of Directors Board

ESftA gEzg
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TREBVNEEENEEFEARTZCEZTE S
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Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/ BIRY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Annual General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting

ENZRE RE#ZRE FHZEE  RREFAE

Executive Directors $1{T€%

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey BR &1k L £ 4/4
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen E& %+ 4/4
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian R 5 & 4/4
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu E7&185% £ 4/4

Non-executive Directors #¥#1TE%E
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, Jp BIAKES4E » £2i22 A T8+ 3/4
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 3% X % & 4/4

Independent non-executive Directors BY#ETEE

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 3 1E 7t 4 4/4
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven ZFiL %4 4/4
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel REE &£ 4/4

N/ARER 1 11 11
N/ARER N/ATER 11 11
N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 11
N/ATER N/ATER N/ARER 11
2/2 il N/ATER 11
N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 11
2/2 1 il 1
2/2 1 11 11
2/2 il 11 11
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Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific term
of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials
on legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu,
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr.
Tam King-ching, Kenny, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Ms.
Chan Mei-bo, Mabel, as to keep them abreast of any changes
to the regulations and disclosure obligations. Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey, Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Kimmel,
Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu and Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
also attended relevant training courses on management, duties
and responsibilities of a director and/or other topics organized
by external professional bodies during the year under review to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.
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PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have
access to such minutes.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
should establish a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, such as any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are
fair and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval
by the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors
are set out on page 64 of this report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2015
is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$0 to HK$500,000 2
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates for
Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s bye-
laws in selecting and recommending candidates for directorship.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same
as appropriate.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of
an executive Director, a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the
Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws
and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mr. Kimmel,
Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu and Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group'’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and approved the external auditors’ remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment
of the external auditors.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board

° To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors

° To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditors are fair and reasonable.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group. During the year under
review, the fees payable to the Company’s external auditors for
audit services and non-audit services were HK$1,648,000 and
HK$815,000, respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily
to tax review, compliance and consultancy services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the results and cash flows of
the Group for that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and in compliance with relevant law and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditors with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2015 are set out on pages 70 to 71 of this
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal control to ensure the effective and
adequate internal control system. The Board convened meetings
regularly to discuss financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

As part of the process of the annual review, the Board has
performed evaluation of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function to ensure that there is adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and
standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the whole Group. Findings regarding internal control
matters are reported to the Audit Committee. The external
auditors have access to the full set of internal audit reports.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications. Separate
resolutions are required at general meetings on each distinct
issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote in his stead.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS
TO NOMINATE A DIRECTOR, MAKE
PROPOSALS AND CONVENE GENERAL
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

() Any one or more shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company,
not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one
week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Details of the requirements and procedures for making proposals
or moving a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the
Corporate Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of
the Company website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
of the Company by addressing them to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at 17th Floor, Empress
Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong by post or by email to kingmkra@netvigator.com for the
attention of the company secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters,
such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the
appropriate management of the Company.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman
at the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet
with the continuous changing environment and for the benefit
of the shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Business experience

AR

Chen Ming-hsiung,
Mickey
PR B 1

Huang Hsiu-duan,
Helen
B

Kimmel, Phillip Brian
WERE

62

58

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
FRERITHEE,

Executive director

WITEF

Executive director

WTESR
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34

34

21

Mr. Chen is a founder of the Group. He is in charge
of formulating the overall business strategies and
future development plans for the Group and leading
the Group towards continuing growth. Mr. Chen
has more than 37 years’ experience in the footwear
industry. He is the husband of Madam Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen, the father of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona
Apple (formerly as Chen Hung-chun, Fiona).
REERAEERPA - BETEREFBELE
RERGERKRERAE  SELNKERERE - R
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Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group. She
is responsible for the overall administration and
human resources management of the Group.
Madam Huang has more than 38 years’ experience
in the footwear industry. Madam Huang is the wife
of Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, the mother of Ms.
Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple (formerly as Chen Hung-
chun, Fiona).
BRTREAEEEMAZ — - BEBBZITHIER
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Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994,
He is responsible for the Group’s marketing and
customer relations. Mr. Kimmel has more than 39
years’ experience in the footwear industry. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Southern
California and a Master’s degree from the University
of Washington in China Regional Studies.
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SEZENSEEEAEBER

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
A Fix B EHEH BELHR
Wong Hei-chiu 48 Executive director 7 Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group
=B WITES and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong is

responsible for the supervision and management of the
Group’s overall financial matters and investor relations.
Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Lingnan University, Hong Kong. He
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising), a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Wong has over 24 years of corporate finance
and financial management experience in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Mr. Wong is also an independent
non-executive director of Hong Wei (Asia) Holdings
Company Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Prior to
joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has worked as
the group financial controller and company secretary
in a Hong Kong listed electronics manufacturing
company for over 8 years; and as the finance director
and company secretary in another Hong Kong listed
wholesale and distribution company for over 4 years.
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Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
HnE Fix B EHEH BELHR
Chow Wing-kin, 65 Non-executive director 21 Mr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination

Anthony, sBs, J.P.
R
REFEE - KF4+

FATESR
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Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Company.
ArERRRFAREZESRERZEEZHKE -

Mr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong
Kong and England and Wales. He has been a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong for over 35 years and is currently
a partner of the law firm Messrs. Peter C Wong,
Chow & Chow in association with Guantao Law Firm
(Hong Kong). His principal areas of practice include
corporate and commercial, property law, probate and
civil litigation. Mr. Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer and member of South China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission. He is the
Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Fountain
Set (Holdings) Limited and a non-executive director of
Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chow is the Chairman of the Process Review
Panel of Financial Reporting Council. Mr. Chow was an
independent non-executive director of The Link Real
Estate Investment Trust, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period from
May 2006 to May 2015. He is the former president of
the Law Society of Hong Kong and was the chairman
of the Process Review Panel for the Securities and
Futures Commission.

ERER IR EEMEIEE KR NER RHAER
B o A BEBEENFEEZMBBF  BREER
JERIR - Bk AT (REEAEM BB (FE)
) ARA c N EFERNEHBERRARERAE
o BERE BEFBRERSEHA c AXERFHEHZ
ARBARERERLCELEHMUEZEGEZE - 05
ERERGZAEFE -mwhREAER (REE) AR
RABULIRTEERENEREEERARINE
BITEE (MARBRMERLTZAGR) - L%
RUBEGRREFERZESERE N_ZETRFH
RAE_Z-—hFHnAHM  ArEREERMERE
SEEe (REBRXMERLEMZAR) 2B BT
EX -MATARMEIEEREABLFARNEEHE
REEGRFERZEGERE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EEZNEEEEBABRER

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
A Fix B EHEH BELHR
Chan Ho-man, 60 Vice chairman and 19 Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996. He

Daniel

BRE>

non-executive director

BIEFERIVNTES

is responsible for advising the management on the
corporate strategy and policy development.
REER—NANRFMARER - B ERBERE R
BRERATEERMHRE

Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan is also the company
secretary of Kin Yat Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan has more than 36 years’ accounting and
finance experience in Hong Kong.
REERRBFFLARGTMAGERGEREES
SRR EEE  REATRAREEEERAFNAA
WE - ZRFRBRZMER LT - REEBRFEI6F
BR G R BER -
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SEZNEEEEABEFE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
A Fix B EHEH BELHR
Tam King-ching, 66 Independent 21 Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit
Kenny non-executive director Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination
B IE B IEHITES Committee and Remuneration Committee of
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the Company. He is a practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as
a member of the Restructuring and Insolvency Faculty
Executive Committee, the Insolvency SD Vetting
Committee and the Small and Medium Practitioners
Committee in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is a past president of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam
also serves as an independent non-executive director
of six other listed companies on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, namely, Shougang Concord Grand
(Group) Limited, CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, Starlite
Holdings Limited, Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited,
BeijingWest Industries International Limited and West
China Cement Limited. Mr. Tam was an independent
non-executive director of a listed company on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange,
namely, North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited, during
the period from September 2004 to February 2013.
BEERRRFBREZEGZEIRIIREZEGRE
MEEG2KE - RABENEGH - BREEG
ARG ERGERINERTABEFITEERGR
MAEEE  BREARBEGHMASERRBEE
BEEEZSHTLZEY  BRESEZBERIEEZE
GRPNEHNEMEZEGNEE - BRREBEAGH
MAGREER - BAEMHEEMANERBRME
METZAR (BIERMA (£@) BRAAF - Fi
EREEERAR  EXEBEERAA BIEERE
BERATF ROAEIERERARRTEAIKEER
BAF e RZEZMFNAZ-T—=F-AHH "
BEER—RRBRMEIER Tz 2w (Bl %
BIERERAR) < BUIFRTES -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

SEZENSEEEAEBER

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
A Fix B EHEH BELHR
Yung Tse-kwong, 65 Independent 10 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the
Steven non-executive director Remuneration Committee, and a member of
HFL BAEHITES each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination

Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung was the
former Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International
Holdings Limited and was the former Chairman of
Clear Media Limited, both of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. As Managing
Partner of Glocal LLC, Mr. Yung has over 34 years’
management experience from leading multinational
companies in the media, entertainment, consumer
and retail industries. Mr. Yung began his career as a
producer with Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting
Company Limited and has since held various senior
management positions at The Coca-Cola Company
in the United States of America and Asia, served as
Regional Managing Director of AC Nielsen China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Korea and as President of
Nielsen Media International. He had been a director
of the Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association
of Asia (CASBAA), and is currently a Director of
the Child Development Matching Fund and the
Tao Fong Shan Foundation Limited. Mr. Yung was
also an independent non-executive director of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the
period from November 2012 to June 2013.
HEERARAFMNEEGER  UREREZEE
REZZEEKE - REEREFBBEERERA
AlZAMETHRAY  WRBFPIMERBR AR L
FIEEEEIR MEARBIMERLET - ER
Glocal LLCZEEAB A KELHEA BIBIAFR
BRRE BEEE RE HERZEEB K
B NAENBEEREEBEERBRAT 8K
BEEE R BRINEBERDINME] ORER
AERZESREERL  EAPRRIHMEES
REFPE - HE - a2 R#ERH - KNielsen Media
Internationalz #& % - 1% % {FCable and Satellite
Broadcasting Association of Asia (CASBAA)ZESE -
BARERERHESRBERLESBRARES -
RZEBE——F+—AE=—=FAHH k%
NRETRAZRERDACEIIFNTES  ZA
AR —RRERMER ETH 2 RA] -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
HnE Fix B EHEH BELHR
Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 43 Independent 4 Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the
PR E non-executive director Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and

54
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Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan is the founder of Mabel Chan & Co, Certified
Public Accountants (Practicing). Ms. Chan has over
22 years’ experience in professional accounting
field in Hong Kong. She holds a master degree
of business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2000 and
a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy
from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known
as City University of Hong Kong) in 1993. Ms.
Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing)
in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a council
member and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Ms.
Chan is a certified tax adviser and a member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in 2010. She
is the past president of The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors, past president and
council member of the Association of Women
Accountants (Hong Kong), and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan is also
a member of the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal
Panel, a member of Appeal Panel (Housing), a
member of the Public Affairs Forum of Hong Kong
Secretariat Home Affairs Bureau, a member of the
CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee appointed
by the Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development of Hong Kong and a member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Age Position held
Fie B

Number of
years of
service

EREFH

SEZNSEEEABERE

Business experience

AR

MLZTAANRBEREZES REZESRTMNES
GIZKE BRI AREBGTMERMAAINA
REZTHREBCEXSH A EEBB22FER - BN
“ETTFEGEANRABINERBLI SN - I
R—AWN=ZFREBRTEIZR (BREAESWN
MAE) ERXBEL (BE) B £BE5 K
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BRAXEEH®ENE  BEERBREERERBER
ZAMEIEEENEERZESNHEREBRE

BIE=o

Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of another listed company on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange,
namely South China Land Limited. Ms. Chan was
an independent non-executive director of a listed
company on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange, namely Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited, during the period from October 2009 to April
2012 and two listed companies on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, namely Hong Kong Education
(Int’l) Investments Limited during the period from
June 2011 to September 2012 and China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited during the period from
December 2011 to December 2014.

LTRSS EERBIMEIZER ETN S —MRE
(BNEEBEMARRAR) NBEUFNATES - R_T
ZENFTRAEZZ—_FMAHM[ Bt rh—H
REERZFTEIER ET 2z 2 E (BIRH R EZERERA
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SEZNEEEEABEFE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
A Fix B EHEH BELHR
Hong Kong Office
EEBREER
Lai Chi-hang, David 48 Group 22 Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993.
REE financial controller He is responsible for the Group’s accounting and
SEPBEE financial management. Mr. Lai holds a Master’s
degree in business administration from University
of Wales. He has more than 26 years’ experience
in auditing, financial accounting and financial
management.
EEEER—NN=ZFMALXEE - BELKEH 2
S MMBER REAKARBANAZIHERR
T2 - AABB26FZY UK LI BERL
PRC base
HEKEE
Yang Mu Lang 54 Senior manager 31 Mr. Yang Mu Lang has been with the Group since
BREE WITIHE 2004. He is in charge of the factory operations
in Zhuhai/Zhongshan. Mr Yang has more than 31
years’ experience in footwear factory.
BARREER2004FMARER  FEZBEKE,/
PIFZEE - HEEERERE BB F &R -
South Asia base
MEE
Hsu Ming-hsien, 56 Vice President 11 Mr. Jack Hsu has been with the Group since 2004.
Jack Blipase He is in charge of the factory production in Vietnam
FTRRE and also factory operations in Cambodia. Mr. Hsu
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has more than 33 years’ experience in the footwear
industry.

HABEER _ZTNFEMAREE - TEETHE
BMEEEFENRERBEMLE - FELEHERE
X BHBBIBF 245 -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

SEZENSEEEAEBER

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service Business experience
A Fix B EHEH BELHR
Retail
Z€
Chen Zi-yun, 32 Managing Director 8 Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group
Fiona Apple EERKE since 2007. She is in charge of the Group’s retailing
(formerly as business. She holds a Bachelor’'s degree from
Chen Hung-chun, National Taiwan University in International Business.
Fiona) After graduation, she studied footwear design at De
PR = Montfort University, the United Kingdom. Ms. Chen
(RIFRILFE ) is a daughter of Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey and
Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.
RF=MAE_TZLENALREE - BEEELRSE
By TEER - RNEHEAEVAEAREEL S
TEBRREE - £%1% - R/EEEEDe Montfort
University# 8 R - EIEEER - ROVERKREK
WREEERRL I 2L
Wang Chin Chu, 51 General Manager of 7 Ms. Judy Wang has been with the Group since
Judy China Region 2008. She is responsible for the Group’s retalil
TE B [ 4R A 12 business in China. Ms. Wang has more than 22

years’ experience in the retail business.
TeWMNEE_ZTN\EFNMALEE - TEBFELE
EhERcTEEY - T NEAETEXRFBB2FZ
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERHE

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 17 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Group
during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 72 to 195.

An interim dividend of HK2.8 cents per ordinary share was paid
on 16 January 2015. The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK4.2 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year to shareholders on the register of members on 8
September 2015. Details are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements. Subject to the passing of the relevant resolutions at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, such
dividends will be payable on or about 25 September 2015 in
cash in Hong Kong dollars.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Friday, 28 August 2015. For determining the entitlement
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
26 August 2015 to Friday, 28 August 2015, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
25 August 2015.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final and special
dividends is Tuesday, 8 September 2015. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final and special dividends, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
4 September 2015 to Tuesday, 8 September 2015, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
dividends, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 3 September
2015.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This

FERHE

BIRAHR SRR ENERE

ERERRPRESHRE 2B AR/ —T—0
FAANR (BHZ) - REERIREIK KR
FIBREHER  AARKH_FT—AFNLARA
(EHR) 2-F—aFAANA (BB D) (2%
BEEMB) EEMERRELTE  RUHMES
EWEEMRNES TE RN EEBRERIIK
R RFRIRE - PTBERDBF X ER AR
B ATER-_ZT-—RFNAA=A(EHM) T
FOR=12 REARBZEERNBPER
DREETERERAT - UHEELTFE -

MBENBE
AEERBERANBFE $ERAERA R
ZHERIIMT - AEBLHEERABREZ

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. — &5 -
Results E4
Year ended 31 March EZ=A=+—HILEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-AF —E-mF —E-=F —E—CF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTAT TAT FAT FAT
REVENUE U3 2,378,003 1,922,803 1,809,377 1,654,968 1,503,868
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT F 102,167 81,107 110,510 58,441 139,163
Income tax expense FTERFI (12,853) (13,515) (16,540) (4,352) (16,859)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR & E&F 89,314 67,592 93,970 54,089 122,304
Attributable to: FE{EF E & F :
Equity holders of the Company
ANRRERFEA 92,480 67,592 93,970 54,089 122,304
Non-controlling interests Fi% Rz (3,166) - - - -
89,314 67,592 93,970 54,089 122,304
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= +£E A=
==} % = #& =
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests EE -BERFERES
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-5F —E-pmE —T-=F —E-CF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTRT FHET TET FHET FET
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
NE - BERZE 522,949 453,019 403,752 411,419 353,444
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
BELwAERE 78,159 55,321 56,890 58,549 60,407
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES &% 115,692 110,694 93,845 81,071 33,256
DEPOSITS #&%& 24,793 21,625 1,862 3,321 4,309
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS
EfEERE 906 925 941 964 968
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
AHHERSE 892 1,490 2,399 2,581 2,143
CURRENT ASSETS #&&E 1,015,636 937,624 925,409 865,335 875,401
TOTAL ASSETS @& E 1,759,027 1,580,698 1,485,008 1,423,240 1,329,928
CURRENT LIABILITIES B & & (622,281) (519,405) (428,432) (431,539) (376,279)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES #H B & & (20,228) (18,942) (14,844) (11,690) (4,098)
TOTAL LIABILITIES & & (642,509) (538,347) (443,276) (443,229) (380,377)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3 i # 2 (19,335) - - - -
1,097,183 1,042,351 1,041,822 980,011 949,551

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND ME BERZERBREYE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and AEEYE  BEMRBIREVEREAFEZ
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in FEFBD R HR M ERERMT14216 -
notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS % 2 K2 B AR R

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share FA - ARBRALBRESLS 2 FIBEMIEHD
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, BIER R B IS Rz T 5E27 )28 ©

are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements,

respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled its
4,604,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that the share
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company
who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share
repurchases are set out below:

FERHE

BrRBERE

ARBZARARNEBERE-AN—FREER
ERAMREBLEAEEER AT  MARBBRZLA
3R A BREREITHAK -

BE BEIHEAXALRFZzLEmES

FA ARARBBBRARZMAR DA ([H
X F)) B8 [E K 5§ E 4,604,000/ e fn - EER
B BOBEHRERARRAIREZERE
Ao ROBEZFENAT

Aggregate

consideration

(excluding

Number of shares Highest price Lowest price transaction cost)

repurchased per share per share REHRE

Month/Year & ' A BEzROE BRESE BREBEE (FTEEXIEE)
HKS$ & 7T HKS & 7T HK$'000 T 7T

July 2014 —ZE—MF+ A 542,000 1.33 1.27 708
August 2014 —ZE—F )\ A 878,000 1.47 1.37 1,253
September 2014 —Z— N4 1L A 2,850,000 1.44 1.40 4,038
March 2015 —&E—HF = A 334,000 1.28 1.24 423
Total 85T 4,604,000 6,422

Further details of these transactions are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

AER P HE— S H BRI B REMET -

B EXATIREESN - ARRHEEMMEQEF
WERBE B HEARRZEM EHE
% o]
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EERHE

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 29(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$279,753,000, of which
HK$28,928,000 and HK$13,775,000 have been proposed as a
final dividend and a special dividend, respectively, for the year
after the reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$102,291,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$68,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 85.6% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 29.7%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EESERA
E% = S

DIRECTORS ==

The Directors of the Company during the year were: FRNERBZESNT ¢

Executive Directors: BITES

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey FeR BUE o A

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen \mHEImL T

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian FRERE

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu migHBEE

Non-executive Directors: FEHMITES :

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P. BoKRREA - Benes  KAFmt

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel RS AE

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHTESE:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny EEIELE

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven WFIEE

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel PREE XL

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu and Mr. Tam King-
ching, Kenny will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

REARBZARIAARETIRARE - MIRE L
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERHE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The related party transactions as set out in note 34(a) to the
financial statements constituted connected transactions of the
Company exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save for those set out in note 34(a),
other related party transactions set out in note 34 did not
constitute connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Apart from those contracts disclosed in note 34
to the financial statements, no Director or controlling shareholder
of the Company had a material beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

64 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015

EE2RBEN

REERRBFAG LEEEE EEMERRN
RAGIARB—FATERE CEERERIN)
AT SRIEZIREEH -

EEME

EXZHMSATFREANBRRAE LHERTAE
B HMMSRAMARREETSL2ETEERE -
BEERRE URAEEEEMEE -

EECEHNER

A5 R M RE34(a) BN S 2 BREE T R B AN A A
EEHeEF EMRAEVUAZFEBRR - DR
BYBRRIAERE ZBERS - FRITEE34() E
N MESAMEEMBESI R ZL MER LT
RAUETZARRIRBERS - RUBRKMEI4
FRBEEIN R BEEHAARAZEREERE
ARBHEAEME R BRI A BAKEER
BEEABEZANT YTEERIBEEFEAN

B -

EERROREBRO AR zES

KRB
R-P-AE=ZA=+—A BAADREES
RS S5 5ATE Y BEMAR B F

B

PIRARBIREBBEZE (EERESF LG K
5 (TR R HE &) EXVER) Z B K 16 Bl
B ARG IAR  HRBELTETAES
ETBERRH2BESA (RETR]) ARE
ARB MRz ez SORBIAT



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FERHE

RAREBEBRZER
Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - B RERNEE

Percentage
Through of the
spouse Company’s
Directly or minor Through issued shares
beneficially children controlled HEARAT
owned ZRAEBSN corporation Total BRTRA
Name of director EE# % HEEBREER AREFR ZBBRIEHIF @t 2B
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Note 1) 1,420,500 33,803,000 263,960,041 299,183,541 43.46%
BREUE S (FEE) (Note 2)
(FftzE2)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Note 1) - 265,380,041 33,803,500 299,183,541 43.46%
BAmLT (M) (Note 3)
(Fft5E3)
Mr. Kimmel Phillip Brian 1] R 5% & 550,000 - - 550,000 0.08%
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel B&J& 35 & 4,530,000 - - 4,530,000 0.66%
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu &g/ % 4£ 1,555,000 - - 1,555,000 0.23%
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P. 2,008,000 S S 2,008,000 0.29%
FRBEE - #2n2E  ATHT
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny & [F &4 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven -F)L%EE 1,210,000 = - 1,210,000 0.18%
Notes: Bt aE -

1. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen is the spouse of Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey.

2. These shares represent 38.34% of the issued share capital of the
Company and are beneficially owned by King Strike Limited. The
issued share capital of King Strike Limited is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey as to 77.45% and Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.55%.

3. These shares represent 4.91% of the issued share capital of the
Company and are beneficially owned by Fat Tat Assets Limited,
which is in turn 100% beneficially owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.

ER ML RRBELRE ZBE -

It S B9 1 AN A R B B 17 B 4388.34% + HKing
Strike LimitedBEz=#H - MBS LENEFH KL
+ 4 B E 2% AKing Strike Limited 2 2 21T 2
77.45% % 22.55% °

I E R DA RQ R B EITIRA491% © BEFat
Tat Assets LimitedEz 5 © MFat Tat Assets
Limited H EHIH L T100% E= A ©
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EERHE

Long positions in share options of the Company:

KATFBREZER
Number of

options directly
beneficially owned

BEEEREEZ
Name of Director EE# & BREHAR
Executive Directors: #{TEE :
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey FREUE &4 438,000
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &&= 854,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian #R{HE L% 1,550,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu EEBEE 920,000
Non-executive Directors: JEH{TESE :
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBs, J.p. BKEBEE © $252s  ATat 870,000
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel BE3 £ 1,160,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: B kHITESE :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny E# E4E 870,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven & FIL% 690,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel BEE % + 1,050,000

8,402,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

66 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015

LS ETESFARATAARELARE
BEAREMRARRABEETHE AR 2IFER
(EPNGT

BREXHBEEEN RZE-—RAF=A=+—
B E=MYBESCHEAREESLAEEIE
G2HFATERL  AMEBEFETHANEGARF
KB 32 Pt 2 AR RS B AR I B EOE B At - AE R
B EFZEEIAR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FEGHE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures
in note 28 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements.
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EERHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

FTERRREMALTRRG RAEER
DR 2 B

R-ZE—RAF=ZA=1+—8B U TARRDEIT
PR K B IR AEE % A LR D IR A R AR IEE S
FEIEIRDIFEIBIRAFE < Eam B MR Z
BRR (TEEARAREFRTIETHRAER)

e
Percentage of

the Company’s
issued share

Capacity Number of capital
and nature ordinary LERNNE|
of interest shares held ERITRAE
Name &78 SHORERME s EREE ZEDH
King Strike Limited (Note 1) (FffE1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 38.34
Emla
DJE Investment S.A. (Note 2) (Ff5E2) Investment Manager 61,984,000 9.00
R AT
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Investment Manager 47,560,000 6.91
and its associates (Note 3) HE IR
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc
NHEE A (H7E3)
Notes: B sE
1. Theissued share capital of King Strike Limited is beneficially owned 1. King Strike LimitedZ B % 7 & 7 £ IR S 5

by Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, as to 77.45% and Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.55%.

2. The 61,984,000 shares are held in the capacity as investment
manager by DJE Investment S.A., a corporation controlled by DJE
Kapital AG, which is ultimately controlled by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl
Ehrhardt.

3. The 47,560,000 shares are held in the capacity as an investment
manager by Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FERHE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2015
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To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 195,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

26 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AN =
W[ E J/Ili
Year ended 31 March 2016 Bt 2 —E— A F=H="1+—HIFZE

2015 2014
—E-FHE —T N
Notes Fff5E HK$’000 T3& Tt HK$'000 /&7
REVENUE Wz ) 2,378,003 1,922,803
Cost of sales SH&RA (2,032,623) (1,632,404)
Gross profit FE7) 345,380 290,399
Other income and gains, net E b A K& a5 5 58 5 12,711 29,576
Distribution and selling expenses 75 M #5 &5 (92,673) (88,453)
Administrative expenses 1T X (163,231) (150,402)
Finance costs @& Ak 4 6 (20) (13)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BrRB{ AR 7 102,167 81,107
Income tax expense FT1EFiF 10 (12,853) (13,515)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE & F| 89,314 67,592
Attributable to: & :
Equity holders of the Company AR RIEZRFEHA A 11 92,480 67,592
Non-controlling interests FE#Z % # %5 (3,166) -
89,314 67,592

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
RAFEBFEAEEESRET
Basic &

HK13.41 cents &1l

HK9.80 cents 1l

Diluted #:&

HK13.37 cents &1l

HK9.71 cents &1l

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 March 2015 &2

/\‘/T\ = %@J‘W

T2}

F_E-AF=—H=+1—HIFFE

2015 2014
e —mF
Notes FffzE HK$’000 T &7t HK$'000 F%&7T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEE & Fl 89,314 67,592
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Hit2mEWE (BAX)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HesHoREEac EM2Eks (FX)
Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve:
AEHEREEMEHE
Changes in fair value 2 F{EZE) 19 879 (909)
Reclassification adjustments for gains on disposal
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
HEFAGEBRRRNEEREMIELNERHRHAR (768) -
111 (909)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BEBIMEE R BN Z5 117 4,985
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
RSN RERRZHM 2 HKE FHE 228 4,076
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEHMZE RS 228 4,076
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEXERSAE 89,542 71,668
Attributable to: fE{E
Equity holders of the Company AR AIEZEIHFA A 11 92,708 71,668
Non-controlling interests FE# % i 25 (3,166) -
89,542 71,668
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31 March 2075/% —F—AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-hfF —EUF
Notes MfzE HK$’°000 T3& T HK$’000 T 7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ HRB&EE
Property, plant and equipment #% - BE & & 14 522,949 453,019
Prepaid land lease payments &1 1 € 718 15 78,159 55,321
Investment properties % & ¥ % 16 115,692 110,694
Deposits & 18 24,793 21,625
Investments in club memberships & FT & £54% & 906 925
Available-for-sale investments AIft HE KR E 19 892 1,490
Total non-current assets 3Fi )& & 42 743,391 643,074
CURRENT ASSETS #EE &
Inventories F& 20 320,800 249,212
Accounts and bills receivable JEWBETE &k Zi% 21 240,773 245,573
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FBRRIE - ke REMEKRIE 15,799 15,051
Derivative financial instruments $74& &gt T A 24 - 1,072
Tax recoverable A] 4 [al 718 162 801
Restricted bank balance X [R #l#R1745 22 1,695 2,044
Cash and cash equivalents 32 & K% RIIR & IEH 22 436,407 423,871
Total current assets B & EEEE 1,015,636 937,624
CURRENT LIABILITIES HiB& &
Accounts and bills payable FEfERIE & Zig 23 269,544 191,940
Accrued liabilities and other payables
BB EREMENIRE 173,805 156,538
Tax payable FE{i1A 176,321 163,857
Due to non-controlling interests FE{f FEIE it 5 34 1,334 4,855
Derivative financial instruments 74 &/ T A 24 1,277 2,215
Total current liabilities 7 E & (E42%8 622,281 519,405
NET CURRENT ASSETS AB&EFE 393,355 418,219
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
EELABRRBEE 1,136,746 1,061,293
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES HiE& &
Deferred tax liabilities IEIEFHIB & & 26 20,228 18,942
Net assets &= & 1,116,518 1,042,351
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Are IR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

2015 2014
—E-hfF —Z—[UF
Notes Bzt HK$’000 T& T HK$'000 T8 T
EQUITY #z
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
RARERIEE ARLER
Issued share capital 2217 27 68,849 68,719
Reserves f# 29(a) 1,028,334 973,632
1,097,183 1,042,351
Non-controlling interests FE¥E&HE2E 19,335 =
Total equity #Em B %8 1,116,518 1,042,351
Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey BR & Wong Hei-chiu #E#
Director % Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Pt = N\ /44
GRESEHE
Yearended37 March 2016 &2 —FE—AF=H=1"—HILFZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRAREEE AR
Available-
for-sale
investment
Issued Share Capital Share Exchange Asset revaluation Non-
share premium redemption option fluctuation revaluation reserve Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve e profits Total interests equity
BRIRA ROEEE RARERE BRERE ENRBRE HEERRE REERRRE REEN At FRRER ERfE
HK$'000 T HK$'000 TAT HK$000 T HK$000 T8 HKS000 FAL HKS000 FHATL HKS$000 T HK$000 Fdr HK$000 FAL HKS000 FAL HK$000 T
A1 April 2013 R=F—=FBA—-R 68,570 101,841 2,965 6,306 75,288 30,237 1,618 754,997 1,041,822 - 1,041,822
Profit for the year A% E &7 - - - - - - - 67,592 67,592 - 67,592
Changes in fair value of
avallable-for-sale investments
MREERE/ATERE - - - - - - (909) - (909) = (909)
Exchange reserve arising from
consolidation of overseas
subsidiaries recognised directly
in equity
GENIBARERRTA
BRFEEZERRE - - - - 4985 - - - 4985 - 4985
Total comprehensive
income/(expense) for the year
RERREYE (%) 88 - - - - 4985 - (%09) 67,592 71,668 - 71,668
Issue of shares from exercise of
share options (note 27)
B TRERREE T R0 (Hiker) 1,245 15,340 - (3,3%0) - - - - 13,05 - 13,085
Issue of shares from award of shares
(note 27)
EREBOMRTZRE (itor) 146 2173 - - - - - - 2319 - 2319
Shares repurchased (note 27)
BER( (M) (1,42) (18,847) 1242 = = = = (1,242) (20,089) = (20,089)
Final 2013 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERRERNZ-5-=F§
AEARE (M3H13) - - - - - - - (34,509) (34,505) - (34,505)
Special 2013 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERRERNZ-5-=FE
RRS (H13) = - - - - - = (13,802) (13,802 = (13,802
Interim 2014 dividend paid (note 13)
BRA-E-mEETHRS
(Ri3H13) - - - - - - - (22,810) (22,810) = (22,810)
Recognition of equity-seftled
share-based payments (note 28)
ERNEREEIRRRMZ
8 (fiite) - - - 4493 - - - - 4493 - 4493
At 31 March 2014
RZF-RE=A=1-A 68,719 100,507 4207 7,469" 80,278 30,237 709* 750,230° 1,042,351 - 1,042,351
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—
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2015 ?é@i_%fﬁi:ﬁ: +f5¢¢/;

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRAREEE AR

Available-

for-sale

investment
Issued Share Capital Share Exchange Asset revaluation Non-
share premium redemption option fluctuation revaluation reserve Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve e profits Total interests equity
BRIRA ROEEE RARERE BRERE ENRBRE HEERRE REERRRE REEN G FRRER RREE

HK$000 T HKS000 T/ HKS000 i HK$000 T HK$000 T HKS'000 T HKS000 T HKS000 THL HKE000 THL HKS'000 T HK$000 T4

Asat 1 April 2014
RZE-MEMA-A 68,719 100,507 4207 7,469 80,273 30,237 709 750,230 1,042,351 = 1,042,351

Profit for the year A% F &7 = = = = - - - 92,480 92,480 (3,166) 89,314
Avallable-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve arising from
changes in fair value and
reclassification adjustments
for gains on disposal
HERE ATRESR
ENARRBAEL,
A ERAE RS - - - - - - il - M - m
Exchange reserve arising from
consolidation of overseas
subsidiaries recognised directly
|n equity
@MTE AEREDA
CRAEE2ENE - - - - 17 - - - 17 - 17

Total comprehensive
income/(expense) for the year
REE2ENE/(B%) 88 - - - - 117 - 11 92,480 92,708 (3,166) 89,542
Issue of shares (note 27)
Eikia (Ws27) 591 7,745 = (1,77) = = = = 6,565 = 6,565
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30)
WEEEAR (K:t30) - - - - - - - - - 10 10
Loans from non-controlling interests
FEREEER - - - - - - - - - 22,491 22,491
Shares repurchased (note 27)
BERD (Fik2r) (461) (5,961) 461 - - - - (461) (6.422) - (6.422)
Final 2014 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERREMN 225 1F
RERE (F13) - - - - - - - (15,201) (15,201) - (15,201)
Special 2014 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
EE /JE&/JE TZ P—qﬁ T)DJHHXE
(H313) - - - - - - - (6,910) (6910) = (6,910)
Interim 2015 dividend paid (note 13)
BRA-E-RERTHRS
(H313) = = - = = = = (19,285) (19,285) = (19,265)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 28)

B ER AR 2308

(Hi28) = = = i = = = = 8377 = 8377
At 31 March 2015
RZB-EF=f=1-A 68,849 102,201 4,668* 9,075* 80,390 30,287 820* 800,853* 1,007,183 19,335 1,116,518
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of 2 SEGEEARGCATERIEZEABE
HK$1,028,334,000 (2014: HK$973,632,000) in the consolidated 1,028,334,0005% 7t (== — P04 : 973,632,000
statement of financial position. BT o
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Year ended 31 March 2016 Bt2 —E—AF=H=+—HIFFZE

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ET—UF
Notes Kzt HK$’000 F3& T HK$'000 T 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RETHZRERE
Profit before tax i 5iiE 7 102,167 81,107
Adjustments for: &% :
Finance costs @& KA 6 20 13
Depreciation #T& 7 59,239 49,166
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
AN LA EHRIE 7 2,050 1,741
Provision for inventories 17 & % & 7 14,039 9,203
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net HEME - BE RREBEB BIEFHE 7 357 507
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
HERHEERERS 7 (768) -
Amortisation of a club membership & Ffr & 5124 5 7 19 16
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
HEREWE 2 AT ERE 7 (4,091) (15,298)
Gain on return of prepaid land lease payment
7 iR TN + AR & K IE 2 7 = (27)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Mm% - BB RRERE 7 9,822 -
Interest income & BUL A 7 (7,696) (8,755)
Dividend income B& 4% A 7 (54) (34)
Equity-settled share option expense
R A 2 BB 2 7 3,377 4,493
Equity-settled share award expense
AR A E 2 B fn 2R R 2 7 - 2,319
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& & & &) 7 5/ £ (2,120) (3,084)
176,361 121,367
Increase in inventories 77 & & N (82,774) (74,715)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and bills receivable
FEURBRTE R ZHER A (38 0) 6,629 (70,171)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
TBRRIE - Re REAEKERER D (35m) 2,898 (1,402)
Decrease in derivative financial assets #7481 # & &7 1,072 1,321
Increase in accounts and bills payable f&/5 BRIE & 2= #5318 1N 77,297 39,428
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and
other payables fE&T & & & B b FETBRIEIG N, CRl ) 37 25,565 (4,133)
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial liabilities
TR BAEEN, Ofd) (938) 2,215
Cash generated from operations & & FT{5R & 206,110 13,910
Interest received B 4 FE 7,696 8,755
Interest paid & {7 & (20) (13)
Hong Kong profits tax paid
EREBNEH (209) (778)
Overseas taxes refunded/(paid) 2 4@ /(2 ) /EINHE 1,592 (2,624)
Dividends paid 2% & (41,396) (71,117)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
e EERM (R 2ReREFHE 173,773 (51,867)
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Year ended 31 March 20156 Bt —F— A F=H=+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-0fF —EF
Notes P 7t HK$°000 T& T HK$ 000 T T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
REFBHZRERE
Dividend received B %A% & 54 34
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEWMXE  WMENMEZEEE 14, 37 (133,193) (62,763)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment HEWE  BE & EHIE B TS HIE 204 20
Proceeds from disposal of an available-for-sale
investment tlj%ﬁfﬁi\ﬁj%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁfx 1,477 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries YZiEH B A 30 157 =
Additions of prepaid land lease payments
TR 4 b AE & FRIEE N 15, 37 (5,078) =
Deposits for the prepaid land lease payments
Rt tAERIE RS 18, 37 (12,754) (7,940)
Deposﬁ paid for proposed acquisition of land use right
FEZWET MFERAEE MRS 18 (16,769) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balance
X BRHIERITAERRR D (E ) 349 (2,044)
Proceeds from return of prepaid land lease payment
ERRTAN LI ERIESSIA - 204
Decrease in time deposits with ongmal maturity of
over three months when acquired
U B B R E 2 EA B e = (8 A 2 5F B AE SOR 147,402 116,036
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
RETBRE () RenEFHE (18,151) 43,547
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
REFTBHZRERE
Issue of shares Z£1Ti% 17 27 6,565 13,255
Repurchase of shares &R {7 27 (6,422) (20,089)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
non-controlling interests (- 3EIE AR MEZS S REIE N, CRiA) (8,814) 4,855
Increase in loans from non-controlling interests
FEPEAR R 2 B KA AN 11,466 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
MEZBIRM (FTA) RenEFE 2,795 (1,979)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRERRSBEBREM (RD) FE 158,417 (10,299)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FzReRERHREIER 246,228 254,544
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
PER BB 2 B 1,521 1,983
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FRZASRERREER 406,166 246,228
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN AN = =1
%/T\ = Eﬁi //ILE?EF
Year ended 31 March 2016 Bt 2 —E— A F=H="1+—HIFZE

2015 2014
—F-IF — L
Notes Bzt HK$°000 T& T HK$'000 T 7T
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS B& RERBESER LR 20
Cash and bank balances 38 & & iR T4 4 22 128,121 69,236
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three
months when acquired
RUERRE PR =@ AR 2 EBEFER 22 278,045 176,992
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows
REReRERMBARCHERERREEE 406,166 246,228
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RIS IAER

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

2015 2014
—B-EF —F—mF
Notes iz HK$’000 TF3& T HK$’'000 F& 7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kR BIEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHIB R 7 2 && 17 90,640 67,190
CURRENT ASSETS REI&EE
Due from subsidiaries &b B A 8 58 17 375,074 465,240
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & M S RIREIEH 22 389 376
Total current assets R B) & E 458 375,463 465,616
CURRENT LIABILITIES B & &
Accrued liabilities and other payables
FEET B E R A MERRIE 1,467 1,394
Due to subsidiaries JE{T KB 2~ 7 FIE 17 - 120,676
Total current liabilities R 8) & E4E 5 1,467 122,070
NET CURRENT ASSETS #i# & E FRE 373,996 343,546
Net assets & EFE 464,636 410,736
EQUITY # &=
Issued share capital 2 Z1TAXA 27 68,849 68,719
Reserves f# 1 29(b) 395,787 342,017
Total equity #4258 464,636 410,736
Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey BR & Wong Hei-chiu #E#&
Director % Director %
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2.1

82

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture,
trading and retailing of footwear.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which because the Company has not early adopted the
revised Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), are those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and available-for-sale investments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2015. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 Bt BRREEZEE
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised standards AEEDBERAMAFE 2 MBHRKREAAT
and new interpretation for the first time for the current KASET R T2 -

year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities EEURREERFEI0% . KEEE
HKFRS 12 and BB REERF125
HKAS 27 (2011) REBGHERETH

(Z5——5%) 287
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BEGIERERN 2] AHeREEREBEE
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and BEGHEREIR 2B TEIANEER
Continuation of Hedge Accounting AR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies B% (ARHBERERE  AKEA
Z88)-2ER21%

Amendment to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’ BBRBREERER BERHHRT
included in Annual ZE:] (BAZE—5%
Improvements EoECFHEC
2010-2012 Cycle FEXE)

Amendment to HKFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent ERMBREER SR EFAHE
included in Annual Consideration in a Business 2] (BAZE-FF  FREHAEK
Improvements Combination’ FoE-—FERHY
2010-2012 Cycle FEXE)

Amendment to HKFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and Payables ERUHREEREI3R  AHENSERENSE
included in Annual ZE:] (BA-E—F%

Improvements EFF-CFEHZ
2010-2012 Cycle FEXE)

Amendment to HKFRS 1 Meaning of Effective HKFRSs ERUBREEDE1S BB B ER
included in Annual QB (BAZE——F  FHMZEE
Improvements EoE-CFHEC
2011-2013 Cycle FEXE)

1 Effective from 1 July 2014 1 REF-AOFLA-BEER

The adoption of the above revised standards and new FRNZ S S RT R R A2 e e Y 52 S5 B

interpretation has had no significant financial effect on BRRELEEAVBHE -

these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND 2.3
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

e R ER AR RV HTE] R RS 5T &8 Y
BREZARFRBDTFRMIET
HY 3T % BR AR E

AEBW RN ERHHRRPEAUTER
B M R AE RV ETR] RIS RT BB IS

in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

& Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

and therefore is not applicable to the Group

8 -

BB RS ERENR

BRUHREENZEI0R R
BB ERE085
(ZB——F) 23]

BABBREENE10%, -
BRUBREENE12RR
BbesENE85
(ZB——%) 2H57]

BAMEREEAEIR
ZET

BEE RS EAE 145

BB REERE155

BREH R 1R 2B

BRI ERS16RR
SRR A

BREHERS16%R
er-Re et iva-H)

EHEA|E19% Y 5]
BBeIIERETS

(ZF——F) 2§67

ZF-FFE-F—F

BHZ FRH#
—F——#32"F-=F

BHZFENE
—E——FE-F-F

BHZFENE

EHTA
REZERBELTNAALE
PEZEZHERIR?

REERE : BRGAY
ER?

BaHgilkE’
HEETEKE
EFEHHE°
REYF’
BENERBHZ

TRZT %2
RE  LEREY:
REGETE - BRHA
BUAFHX Bina?
CHEZ O Rl
BISRE R BREER

BASRRRNBRERA

! R-ZE-—MFELA Bz RFARFES

AR ©

2 R-ZE-—RF-A-BRZRFARFES

Bl E@( °

8 RoB—+F—-A Bz &FRFEH

R ©

¢ RZFB-NF—-A—BRZEARFES

AR ©

° R-IFE-—RF-A-BRZRFARNER
BRBEFENBREIFMEEVBRE
ERIR AN T ERRAEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 March 2016. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the impact of these changes.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

88

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured
in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land under

Not depreciated

Over the lease term
finance leases

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms
and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, equipment 10% to 25%

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred
in connection with the construction of property, plant
and equipment less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such club memberships are not
amortised. The useful life of a club membership with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is dealt with as movements in
the asset revaluation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as dividend income and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

B ¥RaR Y E

31 March 2016 R=—F—HF=H=—+—

2.4 ERSTTHEME &)

HUERRAMBEE

MHBEE (N~ BUKEEz —Bok—4A
REMKEEZ —3B5) £ T5EREER
HER (BEARNEEZKAMBRIEA
BRR)

s UWEBZBEEEMSHREZREZENE
REEm X

O REEERWNZIEEEMSREMN
EZEN HERE-RIEN] &
B EREHE=FERBRELEZ
BER - BAEEHENAKREE SR
EZEME RTHRE@QAREDEHEZ
BEREZBAIDERKEH  (b)
AEEYEERAREZEEERAN
MoRBREE®R  BEEEZREE
ZPEHIHE

AEENEZEUDZHEEEMSRERE
NS BN T AKEKFEES
REHEREZEEZ AR KO - M&H&
B - EEEZIRBEZAEEZBRED

B I [m e HIﬁE%KEQFZT%%
AEBEBENERESERZE RRERHE
BLEE - KRBT - NEERERIER
B DEREEMIBABRRRASE
EREBRMNEEEZELESE -

WAMAEREER‘ERZZAFEZ A
BREE RIZCEBREENUKBEEZ
REmMEMAEERAEEEZNEHELR
(ABREERE) 5T E -

FEEXKEEERAT F#, 2015 99



RIS HRR M et

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 ERETHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills
payable, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 ERETHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, e.g.,
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

HETMITA

B EATERNEHE RSB N8I FRR
‘H FRBEEEENFERE  MBKE
ERMGAERN EEERE - WEMBIKRR
AIAFRRIIR

fTEEMIA
WL EZRERE T E

AEBEMBITESRTA (DIMEHEES
7)) EmOMNERRR - REITESRTIANS
NETZOTHE R K2 BIARFERER - 1R
ARFHEBFE - MAFER/ER 14T
BEUBEAR  MATEMABAEZ - AILAR
BAR

PMHETAZ A TVEEBMESX 2 ERNRET)
BEGTARBSR - ERESREHZ B ERH
BRoN - BN EAth 2 E U aR AR S E AR R S5
HEEBEsREN»ERER -

EEHEEEMERAT FiR 2015 105



RIS HRR M et

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current
or separated into current and non-current portions based
on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the
underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, the derivative is classified
as non-current (or separated into current and non-
current portions) consistently with the classification
of the underlying item.

° Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
hedged item. The derivative instruments are separated
into current portions and non-current portions only if
a reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration is recognised
in equity.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(

) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

2.4 EXAEHHBERE &)

BMEAL

ETIBRAT —THERSERNKE
B

@ — IR —BALTHZALHREKE
o ma AL

() s E R A EE
iy HAEBEEATE : 5§

(i) AAIEEIAEBEFTARINEE
ERABREFR—EKE

%

b) —HRER - BE NIIEMA GRS

EARKEER— REAK

m Y
5 i

el

\
A

i) —HEEBARS —EBMNE
T EEPE (HE—EE
NETIE Wﬁ“?%ﬂ?%

A])

(iy HEREAEEAR—F=ZFH
& ;

vy —HEBRE=
: 73—%
o)k WNS

ZERAARENEAKERRR
@ZEEMEEW SRR BB
-

(vi) %?%%UEm%mAiT%&
HEEH

(i) R@QOEEEMNATHZESRE
Eﬁé%&%Mam(&EE%
HEAT) TBEEBAS -

EEHEEEMERAT FiR 2015 113



RIS HRR M et

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

114

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using an appropriate pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 28 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in employee benefit expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas and in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged analysis at
the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015

B AR AR A (0

F il (&)
REWEREENEMERBZTHE

AEBREEMERTBIREYE - UHIE
TEBHEEE - REYMEBFIERIVE
SWALEREE (K LEARE) 2WE -
At - "EBEY XA TELRSRE 2R
b REBURARERAZHEMEE - &
TOEES MO FERESWAREARTT
BERENFELE - SIRHEAMIRE - X
FITBAE - MRERNABLHE (38
VUABEBRORALE)  AEEEHZE
O DBIARK o Mz FE8B MO AABLLE
ZME (BEDEZBOBOFIELE - X
RUEBmIIRT - IETHAZEZBERAT)
APIEREYR - BBRBEEEREEME
WMEDBIN BT EMET AR WEE L
2l

THEERZE 2 fhET

RBEPRBARK 2 ERBRE M EM T
EREMFTZEERR - E A se G2 T ER
BEREZEERBBREELREAFHE
BN T XA e

AEBEEEENESRERRBEA BT
RBREBHENTNESARNEEZFERHA
RECER EEEIZRBEROINERER
RERBTREFE 2T #RFEE -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group makes impairment of accounts receivable
based on an assessment of the recoverability of accounts
receivable. Allowances are applied to accounts and bills
receivable where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
the differences will have impact on the carrying value of the
receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including (i) by
reference to independent valuations; (ii) current prices
in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition and location (or subject to different leases or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (iii)
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections,
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts,
and (where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying
amount of investment properties, are given in note 16 to
the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
values of those cash flows.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their business activities and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of footwear products; and

(b)  retailing and wholesaling business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss)
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and
other unallocated income and gains, net and unallocated
expenses are excluded from the measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

4.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEDIER &)

(continued)

The following tables present revenue, results and certain THREVNEHEZZ—AFR T —HF=H
assets, liabilities and expenditure information for the = t—HIEFEAEBREES I 2 W %
Group’s operating segments for the years ended 31 March BRETEE  BERATER -

2015 and 2014.

Manufacturing and Retailing and
sale of footwear products wholesaling business Consolidated
HERHEREER SERMBESR Ra
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

—%-1f C-T-NmF =F-RF -T-MF ZB-EF C-T-MF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000
TER TR TER THT TER TET

Segment revenue: 2 2Bl

Sales to external customers $HE FHNREF 2,326,399 1,868,663 51,604 54,140 2,378,003 1,922,803
Intersegment sales 7 2B 4 & 8,558 8,096 - = 8,558 8,096
Other income E- Al A 7,291 6,828 - = 7,291 6,328
Total &3 2,342,248 1,883,587 51,604 54,140 2,393,852 1,937,727
Elimination of intersegment sales ) 25 #4 & %134 (8,558) (8,096)
Total &5F 2,385,294 1,929,631
Segment results 23 ¥ & 128,593 115,257 (22,901) (28,258) 105,692 86,999

Unallocated income and gains, net

FORMAR M FE 2,284 2,114
Interest income FlEUA 7,696 8,755
Unallocated expenses K 2B H ¥ (13,485) (16,748)
Finance costs & &R (20) (13)
Profit before tax B AT HFI 102,167 81,107
Income tax expense FTEHF Y (12,858) (13,515)
Profit for the year & E &7 89,314 67,592
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

Manufacturing and
sale of footwear products

EESIER &)

Retailing and

wholesaling business

Consolidated

RERHEEEER SERMBER =4
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-F5f —ET-mE ZE-1f C—T-@ENF ZEBE-IF C—F-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T AT TR THT THET TEL
Assets and liabilities EER A&
Segment assets 7 0B E 1,214,193 1,034,554 27,623 35,051 1,241,816 1,069,605
Unallocated assets A2 B & & 517,211 511,093
Total assets BEAH 1,759,027 1,580,698
Segment liabilities 7458 & 438,718 345,429 2,804 4817 441,522 350,246
Unallocated liabilities & 7 & & & 200,987 188,101
Total liabilities & {4458 642,509 538,347
Other segment information: 12 HEH :
Depreciation: 7%
Segment 7 53,145 40,916 1,797 3,968 54,942 44,884

Unallocated &7 &

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments:

BIEENHHERE
Segment D8
Unallocated A7 &2

2,050 1,741

4,297

4,282

59,239 49,166

= 2,050 1,741
2,050 1,741
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEHIER &)

(continued)
Manufacturing and Retailing and
sale of footwear products wholesaling business Consolidated
HERHERRER SERBBRE &8
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-RF CZE-mf ZEB-mf CZE-Pm§ -1 C—TMF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$:000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TAT TEx T TEx FAT

Other segment information (continuea):

At BER (£) -

Capital expenditure: BARFI :
Segment 72 127,272 91,905 1,673 2,482 128,945 94,387
Unallocated &7 - 160

128,945 94,547

Impairment of property, plant and equipment:
NE - BERRERE
Segment & 8,632 - 1,190 - 9,822 -
Unallocated &7 E - -

9,822 -
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties:
BRRENEATERS
Segment 7 (4,091) (15,298) - = (4,091) (15,298)

Unallocated &7 - _

(4,091) (15,298)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

B HRaR B aE

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

EESIER &)

HEE R
(a) KEHNREFEFHYKZ
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—JOF

HK$’000 & T HK$'000 F8 7T

The United States of America 3 737,701 806,888
Europe BUM 756,778 622,639
Asia Z8M 663,680 356,864
Others Efth 219,844 136,412

2,378,003 1,922,803

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

LS E R AR P AE SRR o

(b) HFREBEE
2015 2014
—F-1F T MF
HK$’°000 Fi% T HK$’000 F&7T

Hong Kong &% 30,313 33,005
Mainland China 7 & A3t 365,898 396,706
Cambodia 513 112,723 90,951
Vietnam i 230,172 119,171
Others Hfth 2,487 826

741,593 640,659

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments.

FHERBEEERAEEMELS
&g BRI RERTA -
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B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

126

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from sales to customers with over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group during the years ended

EEIILER (&)

IREFEHR

BE-T-AFR-F-ME=A=t-A
IR - AR BRI BB 10% 2 B

31 March 2015 and 2014 is as follows: SHETEA 2 W ¢
2015 2014
—E—0EF —E—pUF
HK$’°000 Fi% T HK$’000 F/&7T
Customer A BEF A 705,489 397,139
Customer B EF B 439,249 365,399
Customer C BF C 385,823 428,282
Customer D EF D 256,778 N/A* i
Customer E BF E 247,496 N/A* i
Customer F &F F N/A*FE A * 254,924
2,034,835 1,445,744

The above amounts include sales to a group of entities
which are known to be under common control with these

customers.

* Sales to these customers during the years ended 31 March
2015 and 2014 amounted to less than 10% of the total
revenue of the Group other than those disclosed on the

above table.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.
GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and after
eliminations of intra-group transactions.

s ~ HAWA R WK F

W MASAEEERE  BHREENES
FRALEE M B FERN - YO K

HEBARRIRZRS °

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as Wz - B A RKEFESTOT ¢
follows:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-RfF T—MF
HK$’000 T%& T HK$’000 F%& 7T
Revenue W
Sale of goods & & M 2,378,003 1,922,803
Other income and gains, net E U A & Uk 3 F 58
Bank interest income 877 % B dA 5,807 6,770
Interest income from accounts receivable & U BRIE 7 F U A 1,889 1,985
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments
fTEeMIT A AT ERE 1,382 767
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net
HEWE - BERKHEIER 2BEFHE (857) (507)
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
HERHEERE 2 W 768 =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #13% - BiE M & RE (9,822) -
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
BfREMEZ AP ENR 4,091 15,298
Gross rental income A& U A 458 7,291 6,828
Foreign exchange differences, net [ X, = %8/ F & (1,116) (3,966)
Dividend income % B A 54 34
Others Hfth 2,724 2,367
12,711 29,5676
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B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BIERKA
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-REF —T

HK$°000 & T HK$'000 T8 7T

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years

BERAFREEEZRITERZFE 20 13
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIADER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEE 2 BB ADE R T9& MR (GEA) A
(crediting): TIER :
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—F-51f%F —F-0mF

HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F8 7T

Cost of inventories sold #4 % &Rk A 1,242,063 1,026,477
Depreciation #78& 59,239 49,166
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments #7815 1 1 F & /18 2,050 1,741
Provision for inventories* 17 & & f&* 14,039 9,203
Minimum lease payments under operating leases for land

and buildings

T RETFZREBRNR T ZHERNES 28,082 30,611
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HEWE  BELREBEB BIERE 357 507
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment

HERMEHERE 2 s (768) =
Auditors’ remuneration % & AT EH & 1,648 1,540
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration

(note 8)):

BEBANFAX (BREEEME (FFE8)):

Wages and salaries T& K& 587,478 472,202

Equity-settled share option expense AR 458 7 BT HERT % 3,377 4,493

Equity-settled share award expense bA#E z 45 8 2 %7 82 EN 5 X2 - 2,319

Pension scheme contributions iR k& 5T 8 52,263 29,183

643,118 508,197
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBANGER (&)
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBZBBADEF TR (GEA) A
(crediting) (continued): TIEE (&)
Group
KEHE
2015 2014
—E—RF —E—POFE

HK$°000 & T HK$'000 T8 7T

Amortisation of a club membership** & Ff & £5 44 45+ 19 16
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments

PTESRIAZ AT ERS (1,382) (767)
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties

BHBREME A TERE (4,091) (15,298)
Gain on return of prepaid land lease payment

SRR TEN LA EFIE 2 e - (27)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

M - BB RREBRE 9,822 -
Bank interest income 877 28U A (5,807) (6,770)
Interest income from accounts receivable

FEUBRIA 2 K B A (1,889) (1,985)
Foreign exchange differences, net [& 3,2 5 % ({E 1,116 3,966
Dividend income A% 8 A (54) (34)

Rental income on investment properties less direct operating
expenses of HK$1,304,000 (2014: HK$1,228,000)
REYER S WAR B L E R 1,304,000/ 7T

(ZZ—P94 : 1,228,000/ 7T) (5,987) (5,600)
Cost of sales includes HK$509,368,000 (2014: MERABDEEREEE TRA KRGS
HK$396,396,000) relating to direct staff costs and 6 47 & 500,368,000 7T (=& — P4 :

depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above
for each of these types of expenses.

396,396,000/ 7T) - EMMEBERN A L
ERERBE s SBERTR -

* Provision for inventories is included in “Cost of sales” in the * FEBEDTAGABEEY [HEE/RA]
consolidated statement of profit or loss. A o

> Amortisation of a club membership is included in ok e EENDH A ACABREY TR
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of Y| Ao

profit or loss.
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B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

EEME

FR - EEMSBREEHARIAARLD
AEH TR ([ ETHRAD) RAEER
) (5£32%) E161IEREMT -

Group

rEER
2015 2014
—E—RE —E U

HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F&7T

Fees 8%

- Independent non-executive directors I IFFITE S 540 540
— Non-executive directors JEE1TE = 540 540
1,080 1,080

Other emoluments: EEI4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 285 R EWHzE 6,770 6,474
Discretionary bonuses B/ &% 2,078 2,153
Pension scheme contributions iE k& 524t & 36 30
Equity-settled share option expense A#E s 4EE 7 BE AT HER 2 1,308 1,123
10,192 9,780
11,272 10,860

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

8. EEME (@)
BYFHITES

Equity-settled
share option

expense Total
Fees DREREE - remuneration
2015 we BB IR R R X [0
—E—hF HK$’000 T7#& T HK$’000 T7#& T HK$’000 T7#& T
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny :Z s 1E %t 4 180 121 301
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # T /T %4 180 121 301
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fR3EE &+ 180 121 301
540 363 903

Equity-settled

share option
expense Total
Fees NEREE 2 remuneration
2014 e AR R B 5 4258
—ZT - HK$'000 F/&7L  HK$'000 F&L  HK$000 Fi#&T
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny Eit 1E %4 180 105 285
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven T /T %4 180 105 285
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel [FEE &+ 180 102 282
540 312 852

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2014: Nil).

FRAYTEEMEMNBIIENTEE 2SS
ZE—UF ) o
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31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

132

Executive directors and non-executive directors

8. EEME (@)

(b) BITESERIHUTES

Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme  share option
inkind Discretionary  contributions expense Total
Fees e 28 bonuses Bihe IERZE  remuneration
kA RENHE HEfe AR ZBRERX Hems
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“2-If TR TR THER TR THER THER
Executive directors:
WITES !
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey A
IREuE N - 3,040 1,139 - 87 4,266
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
BEAmRT - 1,056 322 - 188 1,566
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
MRALE - 1,474 452 - 225 2,151
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
REBEL - 1,200 135 18 162 1,515
- 6,770 2,048 18 662 9,498
Non-executive directors:
*HnES:
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
BE R 360 - 30 18 162 570
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony
RKREE 180 - - - 121 301
540 - 30 18 283 871
540 6,770 2,078 36 945 10,369
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B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM<E &)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) HITEERIHTEE (&)
(continued)
Salaries,

allowances Pension  Equity-settled

and benefits scheme share option
in kind Discretionary contributions expense Total
Fees ¢ 28 bonuses BRe  DEREEZ  remuneration
ik REMNE KE#e B BRERS Me@e
2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE TEx THEL THET THEL THET THET

Executive directors:

HTEE:
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey A
BREHE A - 2,942 1,185 = 120 4,047
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
EARLL - 1,040 335 - 17 1,492
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
MRALE - 1,292 468 - 191 1,951
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
BERLE - 1,200 135 15 139 1,489
- 6,474 2,123 15 567 9,179
Non-executive directors:
FHTES:
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
BE R 360 - 30 15 139 544
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony
ExExE 180 - - - 105 285
540 - 30 15 244 829
540 6,474 2,153 30 811 10,008
A Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey is also the chief A PBRIESLEMAREBITRER -
executive of the Group.
There was no arrangement under which a director SEEMERFRN TR RES R =M
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B (ZE—NE : M) -

the year (2014: Nil).
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134

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four directors of the Company (2014 five directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
highest paid employee who is not a director are as follows:

hERaEFHES
FRAZREHERRBADANZES
(ZZ—mF: AREE)  AMSHFERR
EXHiES s AFEHB—AFEEIRE
HREZHEHENT

2015 2014
—E-1F —TNF
HK$’000 T%& Tt HK$’000 T8 T

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind ¥4 - 2B R EMAE

Discretionary bonus B F 84

Equity-settled share option expense A gz 458 7 BERTHERT 2

443 N/A* A3
607 N/A* N
162 N/A*A i
1,212 N/A* A3

*

The employee was not one of the five highest paid
employees for the year ended 31 March 2014.

During the year, share options were granted to a non-
director highest paid employee in respect of his services
to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 28 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i % P

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FR1EH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BBFMEBHIIBBEFARE BRI 2 G5TE
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits SRR HE A E16.5% (ZFE—VN4F : 16.5%)
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits 2 T o H AR A B FE SR B F 2 B
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates BIEASELEEBHMEBRR RIER
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the B BRFHETE o

Group operates.

Group

REHE
2015 2014
—E-FHF —F-@mOF

HK$’000 T#& T HK$’000 T8 7T

Current — Hong Kong BNEAR{IE — &8

Charge for the year ARFEF{E T H 425 614
Current — Elsewhere B1E37578 — H fbib [

Charge for the year R EFiH 7 H 22,998 16,734

Overprovision in prior years &1 & [Z iR R8 B (11,703) (7,696)
Deferred (note 26) IEE (KizE26) 1,133 3,863
Total tax charge for the year AN E 18 % 4 %8 12,853 13,615
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31 March 2016 R=F—AF=H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

136

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

10. FREH (@)

BRARBREXNBHMBRRIMAERR
AERE R 2R EM R EE AR AR F
ZRIEY HEERERHERGTE 2 BIE N
BRAE ¢

Group

TEH
2015 2014
—R—-iF —T—F

HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 F&7T

Profit before tax BR#% A& F 102,167 81,107
Tax at the applicable tax rates ¥z i Rt & 2 Fi18 15,262 15,635
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years

BAFERIBRS 2 FHE (11,703) (7,696)
Income not subject to tax HZERFUA (428) (465)
Expenses not deductible for tax T~ A 07 2 B 52 3,735 686
Tax losses not recognised KR IBE 1B 5,987 5,355
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate

BRAKEERBERFAE 2 HIBRAX 12,853 13,515

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015



10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 15% to 22% (2014: 15% to 25%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2014: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 17% (2014: 17%), the
Corporate Income Tax rate in Mainland China of 25%
(2014: 25%) and the respective tax holidays granted to
the subsidiaries of the Group in Vietham and Cambodia.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC,
a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates are 5% and 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In addition, pursuant to Cambodian withholding tax
regulations, a 14% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to non-resident shareholders. Therefore,
the Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Cambodia
in respect of earnings generated.

B ¥RaR Y E

31 March 2016 R=—F—HF=H=—+—

10. FRE® (@)

HAMEBEBEEAFNEHME16.5% (=ZF
—PUF :16.5%) - BEEEHRHEEI15%E
22% (ZZ —UF : 15%%25%) * RIFHE
PEBBE20% (ZF—MF : 20%) * A
EBLERBEEI7T% (ZF—WF - 17%)
hEEAEHERB% (Z T —WOF

25%) RAEBER Bk RIFRE BT
FTEEASBEETE -

BIEFBCEMEHE - RARBRIRMAK T 2
SNE R ERINEIR B E TR 2 IR B 1 U
10%TEHH - ZHER=_ZEENF—H—H
BEM WEARZ-ZSTLF+—_A=1+—
HEEEZBH o WP EAEINIIREH
FTB Rl AR 2 MR RIS IRA) - AR FER
REZENHE - AEBEmMS - BAHX
AB5%K%10% o AEBEREMARN B A
Rz MBARIR—_TEENF—A—HEL
2 BA TR E 2 IR B TEINFIE o

AN - AR BRI RFABEG] - RIEAHE
RERE IR ZBEM KU1 4% TN - B
It - AEBEARNRIFRA LN ZFH B A
BIEAE R BN PR3 2 B BN TR0
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10.

11.

138

INCOME TAX (continued)

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China and
Cambodia. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed profit on Mainland
China and Cambodia subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$63,377,000 (2014: HK$66,667,000) at 31 March 2015.

The Group has estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$59,022,000 (2014: HK$49,633,000) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
considered not probable that the Group can utilise these
losses in the foreseeable future.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes
a loss of HK$8,224,000 (2014: HK$11,882,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 29(b)).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company of HK$92,480,000 (2014: HK$67,592,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
689,661,585 (2014: 689,525,223) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company of HK$92,480,000 (2014: HK$67,592,000)
and 691,826,245 (2014: 695,931,719) ordinary shares,
being the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, adjusted for the effects of the
potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares
used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
is as follows:

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

12. AR FAEEREABRGEERET

BRERBMDIBBERRAEDHE AR
1l F B 192,480,000/ 7T (ZF — U4 ¢
67,592,000/ 7T) K& F A B %175 @R
T F 15 #1689,661,585/% (= T — [M 4 :
689,525,223%) 5T & o

EREBERMNDIBERAQAESTE AR
1HEE % F92,480,000/8 ¢ (—F— P04 :
67,592,000 7C) RE&FANE FHITEEEE
TARCEEELRAERR ZFRNERITY
IR INRE T 15 20691,826,2455 (= Z — Y
F : 695,931, 7190%) 5+ & o

FIREHE SR B R B2 IR AT
BUBEMT :

2015 2014
—E-REF —E—F

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating the basic earnings per share
ARG ESRERR N 2 L@ INE T8

Weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on deemed
exercise of all dilutive options in issue during the year
FRBIERITE 2B D 31T ] #E B AE
M RER ME T2 @R INETHH

689,661,585 689,525,223

2,164,660 6,406,496

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating the diluted earnings per share
AR EGRES R 2 @R NEFHH

691,826,245 695,931,719
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B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2015 2014
—E—-HF —E—mF
HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 T8 7T

Dividends paid during the year F A R AL E
Final in respect of the financial year ended

31 March 2014 — HK2.2 cents per ordinary share

(2014: final dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share,

in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2013)
REE_T-—MOF=A=+—HIVEFE

REIAR B — BR T @AR2. 2

(Z2—MF : iBE=T—=F=A=+—AHL

MFE - RER ST BARS.0/8 1) 15,201 34,505
Special in respect of the financial year ended

31 March 2014 — HK1.0 cent per ordinary share

(2014: special dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share,

in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2013)
REEZT—MOF=-A=+—HILMEBRFEN

FRIRE — BRE B0

ZE-OF : pEE-T-—=F=-A=+—AH1L

MERFE - FHIREERE ER2.081l) 6,910 13,802

Interim — HK2.8 cents (2014: HK3.3 cents) per ordinary share
FREIRR S — BT AAR2. 8L (Z T —/U4F : 3.3%1L) 19,285 22,810
41,396 71,117

Proposed final dividend ##/& & #1i% &8

HK4.2 cents (2014: HK2.2 cents) per ordinary share

FRE BB (ZT—MF : 2.2/8(0) 28,928 15,210
Proposed special dividend #E& 15 Bl 1% &

HK2.0 cents (2014: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share

FREBAR2.0BW (ZZ—MUF : 1.048(0) 13,775 6,914
42,703 22,124
The proposed final dividend and the proposed special R SR R B AR B S IR A R AR B B A
dividend for the year are subject to the approval of the NRIRERERBEIAGERIT 2 IR FRF N EH#
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general % FAMEE o ZEU BRI L E R
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the RS o

dividends payable.

140 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERZRE

Group TEH
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
Mg - XA
%iE - HEY
T it RIEF EEIRE EEHEBERAE &t
31 March 2015 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-HRF=HF=+—H FHET THET TET THET
Cost: p 7N :
At beginning of year B & 4] 532,284 35,911 413,357 981,552
Additions R E - 67,399 61,546 128,945
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30)
WM B AR (FIEE30) - - 10,460 10,460
Disposals & - - (9,359) (9,359)
Transfers &2 # 48,310 (48,977) 667 -
Exchange realignment )i 58 % 1,105 (126) 517 1,496
At 31 March 2015
R-ZZE-—RAF=A=+—H 581,699 54,207 477,188 1,113,094
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
ZFHTERRE :
At beginning of year R & 4] 219,256 - 309,277 528,533
Depreciation provided during the year
FAFHRITE 25,766 - 33,473 59,239
Impairment provided during the year
FRFHRRE 8,632 - 1,190 9,822
Disposals {5 - - (8,798) (8,798)
Exchange realignment ) 58 %& 512 - 837 1,349
At 31 March 2015
W_E—RhF=A=+—H 254,166 - 335,979 590,145
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 March 2015
W_ZE—RAF=A=+—H 327,533 54,207 141,209 522,949
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R M et

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERKRE 2&)

(continued)
Group R&EH
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
and motor
vehicles
Land and Construction Mg - RE
buildings in progress & - HEME Total
T RETF TEETHE KRS At
31 March 2014 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
—E—NF=A=+—H FET FAET FAT FAET
Cost: (7 :
At beginning of year R E 4] 516,995 7,211 360,761 884,967
Additions RE 156 40,821 53,570 94,547
Disposals & - - (6,332) (6,332)
Transfers & 10,545 (12,177) 1,632 -
Exchange realignment & 82 4,588 56 3,726 8,370
At 31 March 2014 R=Z—F=A=+—H 532,284 35,911 413,357 981,552
Accumulated depreciation: RFHHTE :
At beginning of year R F 4] 194,206 - 287,009 481,215
Depreciation provided during the year
FRFRITE 23,250 - 25,916 49,166
Disposals & - - (5,805) (5,805)
Exchange realignment 4 #§2 1,800 - 2,157 3,957
At 31 March 2014
R-ZZE—NF=RA=+—H 219,256 - 309,277 528,533
Net book value: BREF(E :
At 31 March 2014
RZZE—MFE=A=+—~ 313,028 35,911 104,080 453,019
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERRZE ©)
(continued)
The Group’s land and buildings included above are REEZ bttt REFHFMMNT

analysed as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AE —F—mF
HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F/8 7T

Land and buildings held under medium term leases in Hong Kong

REBRBPHHERG 2 T RIEF 27,303 28,689
Freehold land and buildings held outside Hong Kong

MEBLAIMNFE Z K AFEE LI RET 70,723 47,997
Buildings held under medium term leases outside Hong Kong

REBANMRIBTRRAERE BT 229,507 236,342

327,533 313,028

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the impairment REBEZZE—RAF=—A=1+—HILFE R
loss of HK$8,632,000 represented the write-down of {EE7188,632,000/8 T A& TEFHAE
certain buildings to the recoverable amount as the Group AEKEHE  AASEARZSETEE -

restructured the operation to which the buildings belong.

The recoverable amount of the impaired buildings and R-ZZE—RAFE=ZA=+—8  BEEFH
the corresponding prepaid land lease payment as at 31 eSS EMARMNTEN B ERES
March 2015 of HK$23,638,000 was based on a valuation 23,638,000 T NIRIE B IIE XS ER
performed by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, HERE (B8) BRAFTHETHME -

independent professionally qualified valuers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE @)
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy AFEEBR
The fair value of the Group’s impaired buildings as R-ZE—RAF=A=1+—H ~EBZRE
at 31 March 2015 was estimated by using significant BF 2 AFEDEAERTIE R AZBE
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement was BT R AT EAEDEEE=R -
categorised under Level 3.
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and TN AEREEFEEMERZGERERE
the key inputs to the valuation of the impaired building: EABEZHE
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Weighted average
LB & BERTHEHERAZE InAE 35
Income capitalisation approach Estimated rental value (per square metre and per month) HK$6
WAB AR E HErHeER (BFAREREA) 68T
Rental growth rate 1%
HeERE
Market yield 8%
M=

144

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the leasehold
improvements for the retailing and wholesaling business
of HK$1,190,000 was fully impaired because the business
has been loss-making for some time.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. AL tEEKE
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-AHE —F-mF

HK$’000 T8t HK$’000 F/& 7T

Carrying amount at beginning of year A& #) 7 BRE & 57,064 58,625
Additions A& 10,263 -
Transfer from deposits (note 18) #E#Hi% 4% (H5E18) 15,185 -
Amortised during the year 7 4 R # $4 (2,050) (1,741)
Return of prepaid land lease payment & A i T E R IA = (a77)
Exchange realignment 4N 5% (185) 357
Carrying amount at 31 March = A =+—H ZEHAE 80,277 57,064

Current portion included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

FIATAR IR - 12 E K E A W FIA 2 BNEAER 7 (2,118) (1,743)
Non-current portion FEEIEAEE 5 78,159 55,321
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments amounting & B 2 T8 4 & FXIE55,147,000
to HK$55,147,000 (2014: HK$57,064,000) and BT (ZF — U % : 57,064,000% 7T) &
HK$25,130,000 (2014: Nil) are held outside Hong 25,130,000 T (ZZ—WHF : ) REH
Kong under medium term leases and long term leases, AN R S RIRIEH B R REAF LIS -
respectively.

At 31 March 2015, the Group is in the process of obtaining R-_ZE—RAF=ZA=+—H AEBIEA
the land use right certificate in respect of the prepaid land AR - BRE A & £25,130,000% 7T
lease payments for the land located in Vietnam with a net (ZE2—NE:F) BN T HHEE
carrying amount of approximately HK$25,130,000 (2014: SRIANHE IS Db (P FARERE -

Nil).
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31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=HA=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

146

16. REW=

Group

KEH
2015 2014
—E-hE —F-MmE
HK$’000 T7#& T HK$’000 F& 7T
Fair value at beginning of year RE 2 A& 110,694 93,845
Fair value gain on revaluation &1 A FEW 4,091 15,298
Exchange realignment 4N& F8 % 907 1,551
Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—HZ QA FE 115,692 110,694

The Group’s investment properties are situated outside
Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases. The
Group have determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and
industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2015 based on valuations performed by
Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$115,692,000 (2014
HK$110,694,000). There has been no change from the
valuation techniques used in prior years.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 32 to the financial statements.
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R-ZE—RAF=A=+—8 ~£EEZKE
MERBLEELSEARMGEMSE S (BF)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as
at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurements are categorised under Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

16. BREWE #)
ATEBR
RZE—RAF=A=1+—"HERZZE—WNF=
A=+—8 KNEBEZZEMEZ AFHET
FEREATITERE ARE G RAF M

ENBEF=H-
FA - F-REF_KAzEHEEHRATE
TR MEEAZ=ANEE=AEL (=
T E) -

RRFEERE=ZBADBZ A FEEFE

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: HER
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
[GEX/ES TEME A&t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHETT T TT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2013
R_E—=FMNA—BZKEE 9,410 84,435 93,845
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised in profit or loss
PSR EE A TERS 538 14,760 15,298
Exchange realignment 4N 38 2% 154 1,397 1,551
Carrying amount at 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014
RZZE-—WF=A=1T—HAR-_ZT—NFHA—BZKHA 10,102 100,592 110,694
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised in profit or loss
R ER 2 B AT ERE 1 4,090 4,001
Exchange realignment 4N 5% 82 825 907
Carrying amount at 31 March 2015
RZZE-—RAF=A=+—HZKHA 10,185 105,507 115,692
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWE (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEBR (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and LT AREEYEGHEMERCHETERE
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: EANBEZHE
Significant Range or weighted
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs average
L E £ fRER % BEATAEHRGEABE & B =5 hn#E 35
2015 2014
—E-—FHF —ZT—N0NF
Commercial properties Market comparable Gross unit rate per HK$31,000 HK$31,000
[EEX/ES method square metre 31,0007 31,0008 7T
s BIE BFHAREEMEE
Industrial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$13 to HK$12 to
T approach (per square metre and HK$19 HK$18
WAEBARE per month) 138 TR 128 TR
HEtiESER 1978 7T 187 7T
(BFEAAREH)
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
HegirE
Market yield 7% 7%
M5l e &
A significant increase/(decrease) in the gross unit rate per EBTAKBENEE  H3tEeEE (&
square metre, estimated rental value (per square metre and EFTHAESA) FHEEERARERER
per month) and rental growth rate in isolation would result () BERIREME 2 AT EKRE
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the FAHAATE®) - EmiglEREFAE L
investment properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in HACTK) B eE5RREMEZLAFE
the market vyield in isolation would result in a significant Kig T ek (EF) -
decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. SR B ATKRE
Company
AAT
2015 2014
—S—FEF —ZE—OFE

HK$’000 T 7t HK$’000 F&7T

Unlisted shares, at cost 3E_ ETRZ D » TAKAS 67,190 67,190
Loans to subsidiaries KiB QR E X 23,450 =

90,640 67,190
Loans to subsidiaries included in investments in subsidiaries B A ENYHBEARRENIBE AR
above are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms AEIEE . a8 REETIEZRE  BIEER
of repayment but are not expected to be repayable within SRBEMBFBIFAK+_EARNES - B
the next 12 months from the end of the reporting period. E2hA  BIwE AAURAES o

In the opinion of the directors, the loans are considered as
quasi-equity loans.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the EFARRBRDEERRD A FKE
Company’s current assets and current liabilities are W/ ENMBARSE  REER - 28
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. RAREKFEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R M et

31 March 2016 R=F—AF=H=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

150

Place of
incorporation/

17. B A RKRE (#)

TEMBARZFHBAT :

Issued shares/

Percentage
of equity

registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
MR BRITRG ARF
=x e At B T & A BERESL ETEHEK
Directly held EiZixH
MJ Haig Industries Limited *  British Virgin Ordinary 100 Sourcing of
ZERBEROBR AT Islands/Taiwan Us$10,000 raw materials
EEBERR TR for footwear
B AE 10,0003 7T REBES
EmRE
Ready Luck Limited * British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 Investment holding
EEERRES US$5,000 REER
Rl
5,000 7T
Indirectly held B##&45
Discovery Star Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Property holding
Development Limited B HK$2 REME
WMEZERBRAF LmoBT
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Vietnam US$15,000,000 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. fisEa) 15,000,000% 7C manufacturing
g2 2% (#m) BRAR SUEERAE M
Maystar Footwear PRC/ US$43,000,000 100 Footwear
Company Limited * Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing
EXEHHEARAF" HE R 43,000,000 70 BUEERES
(P 3E(a))
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B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

17. BB ATERE (&)
FEMBATZHBNT (£)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(continued):
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued shares/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
FEMRL BRITRG /N
=18 1T R A it B HEMEAR BERESE FEEE
Indirectly held (continued)
BERE (&)
Miri Footwear British Virgin Ordinary 100 Sourcing of
International Inc. Islands/ US$H raw materials
Mainland China TmAR13ETT for footwear and
EBERRESE footwear trading
R A REBERAE D
HHEMD
Miri International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Investment
REEBRESROHERAT B HK$2 holding and
LBRoBT provision of
administrative
services
KEER R
REITBRS
Profit Success Investment Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Investment
Limited aBH HK$1,000 holding
FEKKEBRAR] EBAX REER
1,000/ 7T
Kingmaker Footwear PRC/ US$30,000,000 100 Footwear
(Zhong Shan) Co., Ltd. * Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing
B2 e (hil) BRAR FEHEAM 30,000,000% 7T SUEEREM
(P 3E(a))
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B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

17. BB ATERE (&)
FEMBATZHBNT (£)

(continued):
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued shares/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
FEMRL ERITRE AT
=L 1T R A it B HEMEAR BERESE FEEE
Indirectly held (continued)
MEREHE (&)

King Senses Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Investment
Limited aBE HK$1 holding
BEEEERAA w1 BT REER

Kingstar (Jiangxi) PRC/ US$11,920,000 100 Footwear
Footwear Limited * Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing
=2 OIf) EXERAR"  HE HEA 11,920,000 7T BUEEBER

(M%)

Kingmaker (Cambodia) Kingdom of Ordinary 100 Footwear

Footwear Co., Ltd. Cambodia US$10,000,000 manufacturing
RipEEE EBAX SUEEIRE MO
10,000,000% 7T

Opal Star International British Virgin Ordinary 100 Investment
Holdings Limited * Islands US$1 holding
EEBRERAR A" EBERRAES TiEAR1ETT REER

Star (1) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Retailing of
BENBRARA & HK$300,000 footwear

products
IR TEENER
300,000/ 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. BB ATERE (&)
FEMBATZHBNT (£)

(continued):
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued shares/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
FEMRL BRITRG /N
=18 1T R A it B HEMEAR BEREAE FEEL
Indirectly held (continued)
BERE (&)

REBINEBEXAERAR" PRC/ RMBS8,000,000 100 Trading and
Mainland China (Note (a)) manufacturing
HE B AR of footwear

8,000,0007T products
(PR 5E(a)) BEREGE
HHEEMm
LR B BN SRR R PRC/ US$8,000,000 100  Retailing of
EH5BRAR" Mainland China (Note (a)) footwear
RE B A 8,000,000 7T products
(P 5E(a)) TEEREM
EEEBMNERR PRC/ RMB26,000,000 100  Retailing of
g5 8RA A" Mainland China (2014: footwear
B R RMB14,000,000) products
(Notes (a), (b)) TEHEER
AR¥
26,000,0007T
—TF
AR
14,000,0007T
(Ff5E(a) ~ (b))

LB EEREARAA PRC/ US$9,000,000 100  Property
Mainland China (Note (a)) holding
hE S PEA 9,000,000% 75 SEERYES

(FF&E(a))
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B 75 5 5% B

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

154

17. BB ATERE (&)
FEMBATZHBNT (£)

(continued):
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued shares/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
FEMRL ERITRE AT
=L 1T R A it B HEMEAR BERESE FEEE
Indirectly held (continued)
MEREHE (&)
King Eternal Investments British Virgin Ordinary o1 Investment
Limited * Islands US$100 holding
EBERRES E B REER
10037
King Riches Limited British Virgin Ordinary 100 Trading of
SBARAR Islands/ US$1 footwear
Mainland China LEAR1ETT products
RBHERRES BEEREM
B A
Sanford Resources Macau Macau Ordinary 100 Trading of
Commercial Offshore Limited B[ MOP100,000 footwear
3B 100,000 products
BPITT BEEEMEmM
Star Praised Limited British Virgin Ordinary 100 Investment
Islands/ US$1 holding
Hong Kong TBAR1ETT BB
KBHARES
HB
Yingfeng Industrial Hong Kong Ordinary 51 Investment
(Hongkong) BE US$20,409 holding
Co., Limited # L iMA%20,4093% 7T wE R

MEEX (F8) ARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows
(continued):

Notes:

(a)

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the law of the PRC.

The registered capital of L/8BBWEHEEHER AR
was increased from RMB14,000,000 to RMB26,000,000
and the registered capital was fully contributed during the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The subsidiary was acquired during the year. Pursuant
to the investment agreement, a shareholder’s loan
of HK$11,465,000 was arranged. Further details of
this acquisition are included in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

17. B L RRE (@)
IEMBARZHENT (4) -

GEE

ZEME R RREDBDREEMAING
BEDE -

BE_ZT-—FRF=-A=+—RLFE "
EEERNERRESERA R ZEM
B AR AR14,000,000TEINEAR
#26,000,0007T * %kt & AN B BEH
fit e

MEARKEEMBHRLIFMEEL
KRN AT R oK & SR B BRAE AR
ZEERAERK -

MR BN FERUEE - RBIREHZ
B HERERE 11,465,000/ T © B E
WHE EIER#E — S EE SN T BRE
Fi3E30 °

EEMRR ERAAVIDAA/TERFEE
ARANAEBEEFEERE D ZARA
TEMBRR c EERRHAINEMHBERR
FEREEFERTTE
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31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=HA=+—H

18. DEPOSITS

Included in the deposits were:

156

(a)

deposits of HK$5,509,000 (2014: HK$17,940,000)
for the lease of one (2014: two) parcel of land
in Vietnham. Pursuant to the letter of offer and
supplemental agreement entered into between the
Group and an independent third party on 15 July
2013 and 27 December 2013, respectively, the
Group would lease two parcels of land in Vietnam
until 2082 at a consideration of approximately
US$6,855,000 (approximately HK$53,334,000),
subject to adjustment based on the actual area
of the land pursuant to the final survey. Further
details of the transaction were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 15 July 2013 and
30 December 2013. During the year ended 31 March
2015, the independent third party has handed over
the right for use of one parcel of land to the Group
and deposits of HK$15,185,000 were transferred to
prepaid land lease payments (note 15); and

deposits of HK$16,769,000 (2014: Nil) for acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Munchy Food (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd. Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement
entered into between the Group and an independent
third party on 2 February 2015, the Group would
acquire 100% equity interest in Munchy Food
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd. of which the principal activity
was holding the land use right of a parcel of land
in Vietnam with a lease term expiring in 2045, at
a consideration of approximately US$2,150,000
(approximately HK$16,769,000). The consideration
was fully paid and kept in an escrow account at
31 March 2015. The acquisition was completed
subsequent to the year end in April 2015 upon
fulflment of the terms and conditions set out in
the agreement, and will be accounted for as an
acquisition of an asset in the financial statements for
the year ending 31 March 2016.
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18.

B
HARSS

(a)

HESE R (ZZ—0F : Mmig) £
# 25,509,000/ T (= T — /Y & :
17,940,000 7T) #H & - RIBAREE
HBYE=APIR=ZE—=F+
A+RBR-_Z—=#+-_A_-+
+tHIIVZZHHRFER MR - A&
EHEYEmE L BEEZF
N Z & (& 496,855,000% Jt (4
53,334,000/ 7T) + M ] 4R ¥ A 4% )
Bz THEREBIELHRAE - ZXH
LE—TSHBERARABHA=ZT
— =t A+ARAR-E—=F1+=
A=1THZAMARE -REBEEZ=F
—AF=A=+—HBILFEHH B
VEZHEH-—RIZFEAEIT
ANEM - 415,185,000/ Jt C 2 #
EREMTHASERE (MiF15) &

W B Munchy Food (Vietnam) Co., Ltd.
100% A% 4 2 16,769,000/ TTiZ & (=
T—NE:F)  c REARBRIRBALE
AR -ZE—RAFE-_A BT MK
EEEGE - ASELAL2,150,000
% 7t (#916,769,000/%8 ) & B Ik
#8Munchy Food (Vietnam) Co., Ltd.
100% Kt EXEXB AFEUE
—IE T T AE - BAFHR
—ENhFER - R_E—RF=H
=+—H REZHERTFHRTE
MR o fFENX B FTE A G R R
% WEEER_T-—HAFHANGF
HEHETK  WEREBE_Z—RF
AT RALEFEMNTBEREAR
RUWIE—IREE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AIEHERE
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E—FE —E—pO4

20.

HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F/8 7T

Hong Kong listed equity investments, at fair value

HELTKRE - RATE 892 1,490
During the year, the fair value gain in respect of the Group’s RER » REMEERAER 2 AEE R #
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other HERRNIEE 2 A FEKEL /879,000
comprehensive income amounted to HK$879,000 (2014: 7T (ZZ—PO4 : 909,000/ L) °
loss of HK$909,000).

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based ETRAEE 2 AT ETIRTISHRETE ©
on quoted market prices.
INVENTORIES 20. F&
Group
rEHE
2015 2014
—E-RF —EF—OF

HK$’000 % T HK$'000 87T

Raw materials M # 129,307 102,238
Work in progress £ & 40,951 32,312
Finished goods ZLAX in 150,542 114,662

320,800 249,212
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31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE . EWERIEBEREE
Group
KEE
2015 2014
—E-hE —F-mF
HK$’000 T#& T HK$’000 F%& 7T
Accounts and bills receivable & U BRTE & ZE % 240,773 245,573

158

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable mainly related
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment
terms with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are
normally payable within 90 days of issuance, except for
certain well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s senior management. Accounts receivable are non-
interest-bearing, except for a balance due from a customer
of approximately HK$50,536,000 (2014: HK$54,730,000)
which bears interest at 0.25% to 0.5% (2014: 0.5%) for a
fixed period of 60 days.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the date of
goods delivered, is as follows:

AEEZEREERERTZRIHNE
REGEBZEFPEB HBTEPZNRIE
REEREEFN c REREEBHERKT
ZETEFAINELEE180A NERIN -
—MEFZERHAWOE - REEEITEK
s AR E 2 EWRAERTE - UREEER
o @BRNHREREAEESAETERETE
HEZ - BREETTE  E—BFEX
2 858 #950,536,000/8 70 (—ZF —PU4F :
54,730,000/ JT) #0.25%0.5/2 2 B K &t
B (ZZ—WMF : 05F) - EEEHKE A0
E| o

AT BB AR - U ARIE R A
BEMRZERITOT -

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—OF
HK$’000 T7#& T HK$’000 F&7T
Within 90 days 90H N 239,066 243,738
Between 91 and 180 days 91 H=180H 1,340 1,731
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H £365H 261 104
Over 365 days 365H A + 106 -
240,773 245,573
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

(continued)

The aged analysis of accounts and bills receivable that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

EWERERERE (#)

I ARG A IR E 2 FE IR TE & 21 7 BR Bk
DT

Group

REH
2015 2014
—E—fEF —ZT—F
HK$’000 Ti& T HK$’000 F& 7T
Neither past due nor impaired 77 sk & IR R (E 226,109 228,441
Less than 90 days past due #8790 H 14,475 16,306
Over 90 days past due %1 HiEE#E90H 189 826
240,773 245,573

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

b #2 360 Hf o Rk B 2 FEMUFRIR S e D BB K
AFEZEF  RFORAEERMARE

BN EIERE YR FRE
TRAKEBARRIFZELEF - BAGEE
B ARAEEMRR  LEFSERZEFE
SIELRERE  RARGEERYEEX
B - MERIDRRIEATZEBER - KNEE
TERZEESTATAERREIEMER
RITLE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 R=F—AF=H=+—H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

22. HERERREEE RZRHIER

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE THER
Group Company
=%m LN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-AF —F-mF —2-1f% —F-MF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT TET THT
Cash and bank balances
RNe NIRITHES 129,816 71,280 389 376
Less: Restricted bank balance (note (a))
B ZRERITEER (H3E(a)) (1,695) (2,044) - -
128,121 69,236 389 376
Time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months
REZNBMBALR=(EA z EHFH 278,045 176,992 - =
Time deposits with original maturity
of over three months when acquired
RERREIHER=@EAZ EHER 30,241 177,643 - -
Cash and cash equivalents
e kEFRREIER 436,407 423,871 389 376
Note: MIsE -

(a) Pursuant to the requirement of the local customs in Gongbei,
the PRC, the Group was required to maintain certain cash
in a designated bank account for securing the import duties
of certain imported goods which were delivered to other
locations in the PRC. The bank balance will be released
upon the approval from the local customs and is restricted
to be used by the Group.

160 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015

(@) MEPHEBILEMEERTE - AEEEAR
BERITRPRIT —EREKF - URE
ENEEhBEBEANEMITZETERE
mZEOBE - ZIRITAEBRGERTEE
BEHE T T EER - BERNAKERE
A e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$157,383,000 (2014:
HK$187,598,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one week and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
received, is as follows:

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

22 BERERBELEE RZRHIE
1Tk #)

RBEHR  AEBUARE [ARE])
STE RS RIRTTA #2435 157,383,000
gt (ZZ—PU4F : 187,598,000/ 7T) - AR
BEISEBRERAHME - AW - BIEF
B INE B MGG R AL TE - EERMNEEER
T AEEREREETINEER ZRITH
ARBHB|AEME -

FITRSERE BRTERFE 2T R
5o ERERZBRE—BE—ET% 8
TREEZ NBRLBRME - HEBTH
ERFIRE R -

BIRBRTHEREEEEEBRTZE
17 TR AR o
23. ENRERERE

Nrz & B\ AEE - BNRAREER
BERR KR

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —EF—mOF
HK$’000 Ti& T HK$’000 T 7T
Within 90 days 90H A 265,681 173,561
Between 91 and 180 days 91 HZ180H 2,146 16,490
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H &365H 830 1,087
Over 365 days 365H A £ 887 852
269,544 191,940

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

JEMBRIERETE » B—MRZBEMNIOB BT »
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24,

25.

162

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24, fTHEE@WMI A
2015 2014
—E-RF e usfeS
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =N BE =L

Group HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TEE FExT FET FABIT FAEIT
Forward currency contracts i Hi9MNE S 47 - 1,277 1,072 2,215
The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the RHNE S REEHEEAFERR - &
same as their fair values. The above transactions involving WP RATE SR TR 2325 Th BT BN 58
derivative financial instruments are with creditworthy banks ALtk BEBIRITHEST -
with no recent history of default.
The Group has entered into various forward currency AEBRFTUZERPEBANERER
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which BEFa B R e AR IR 2 NEE B o IF
did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Net fair HAEETETACATERSFER
value gain on non-hedging currency derivatives amounting 1,382,000/ 7t (= & — 4 4 : 767,000/
to HK$1,382,000 was credited to the statement of profit or 7T) ERFARFTABZRS (MIE7) °
loss during the year (2014: HK$767,000) (note 7).
The fair values of derivative financial instruments are based PTEeMIAC A FEDRRETH ©
on quoted prices.
BANKING FACILITIES 25. SRITRLE

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had available
banking facilities amounting to HK$99,000,000 (2014:
HK$99,000,000) of which approximately HK$2,665,000
(2014: HK$4,545,000) was utilised. The banking facilities
were supported by corporate guarantees executed by the
Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26. EXEHIBEAE
Group NEH
Revaluation
of investment
properties
REVEEME
HK$'000 F&7T
At 1 April 2013 R —ZE—=%MF—H 14,844
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10)

FRFFAZEERR 2ELERIE (MiFE10) 3,863
Exchange realignment 4N 38 % 235
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014

RZE—WF=A=-+—AK=ZFT—WFNHA—H 18,942
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) FRET AL A B R ZIELEFRIA (Ki7E10) 1,133
Exchange realignment 4N 38 % 153
At 31 March 2015 R—Z—HFE=F=+—8 20,228

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B

Shares i&viy

Number of

ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$’000
BERHEEIVET Z2EBREE FET
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—1F —ZT N —E-HF —T g

Authorised: JATE

Balance at beginning and end of year

FH R FREERR 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: 2217 & 402 -

Balance at beginning of year F ¥145 &k 687,189,445 685,698,445 68,719 68,570

Shares awarded (note (a))

ERERD (MFE@) - 1,468,000 - 146

Share options exercised (note (b))

AT AR (FI5E(0)) 5,905,000 12,447,000 591 1,245

Repurchased (note (c))

B (FIEE(c) (4,604,000)  (12,424,000) (461) (1,242)

Balance at end of year F 4% 45 &4 688,490,445 687,189,445 68,849 68,719
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31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=HA=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

164

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the
share award scheme of the Company, the Company
awarded 1,468,000 ordinary shares at HK$1.58 per
share by way of issue and allotment of new shares,
resulting in increase in share capital of HK$146,000 and
share premium amount of HK$2,173,000 (note 28).

The subscription rights attaching to 2,687,000
(2014: 7,286,000), 2,946,000 (2014: 5,161,000) and
272,000 (2014: Nil) share options were exercised at
the subscription prices of HK$0.972, HK$1.196 and
HK$1.58 per share, respectively. These resulted in the
issue of 5,905,000 (2014: 12,447,000) shares of HK$0.1
each and a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of approximately HK$6,565,000 (2014: HK$13,255,000).
An amount of HK$1,771,000 (2014: HK$3,330,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

During the year, the Company repurchased its 4,604,000
(2014: 12,424,000) ordinary shares at prices ranging from
HK$1.24 to HK$1.47 per share at a total consideration
of approximately HK$6,422,000 (2014: HK$20,089,000).
4,604,000 (2014: 12,424,000) repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled during the year. Details of
the repurchases are disclosed under the heading of
“Purchase, redemption or sale of the Company’s listed
securities” in the Report of the Directors. The premium
of approximately HK$5,961,000 (2014: HK$18,847,000)
paid on the repurchase of these shares was debited
to the share premium account and an amount of
HK$461,000 (2014: HK$1,242,000) was transferred
from retained profits of the Company to the capital
redemption reserve, as set out in note 29(b) to the
financial statements.
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27. BA& (&)

FR - BRAZESHWT :
@ REBEE_FT-HWOF=A=t+—HItF

B BEAABRNEEE - K
NAIABITREZEHR 27 AFEH
1,468,0000% &% 1.588 T 2 E ik

B 11t 8 B B% AN 38 01 46,0008 7T & %
19334 1B BR 3% 102,173,000/ 7T (K &F
28) °

Mt 72,687,000t0 (= & — IO 4 :
7,286,00013) * 2,946,0001% (= =
— 9 £ :5,161,00013) &%272,000
MZE—NF: ) BRELZR
B RIZRET0.97278 7T ~ 1.196
BITR1.8B T RBEETHE - B
It 2% 175,905,0000% (= & — 1Y 4 :
12,447,0000% ) Bk m B0 T
2GR AKRERAZBBReRE
49 56,565,000/ 7T (= & — Y 4F :
13,255,000/ JT) o B A% #E & 17 (&
% BERRERET1,771,0008 T (=
=[O : 3,330,000;‘%7@) HEER
& B

RAFE  ARBLER.248 T
21.47% 7T 2 (B 1% B8 [ E4,604,000
%ﬁ%%f?—?—mi © 12,424,000
B - AR A(E 4 56,422,000/ T (=
T — m 4 : 20,089,000/ JT) ° FT
f% B 24,604,0000% & B (ZF —
PY 4F : 12,424,0000%) B N & F &
TH - BOsFBEIRESTERE
NIEE BOsKHEARRZEM
FH|—B-ptBEEZERMDAZA
2 i {8 #95,961,0008 T (Z & — Y
F 118,847,000 7T) B B & 5 &
BERPNEG YEREAQRRBRER
F 88 #461,0008 0 (=& — 0 & :
1,242,000 7m) EEAERHE (R
B ¥ < i 5E29(b)



28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME
Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option schedule (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme included the Company’s
directors (including independent non-executive directors),
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, and any shareholder
of the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 29 August 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Group may not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting, the maximum number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of grant.

Bk @%

31 March 2016 R=ZFE—AF=H= H

28. IR ESTEI R R BB 8

BRETE

ARBRIBAIAEE ([FBAESTED
EEZBRERRAEEEBRINELER
ZEER2RE BEREFIZAERS
HEBRARAZES (BREBIUIFNITE
) AKEZEMES  AKREZEmMK
RISHER - ARB TP - AAKEREH
st MEREMBM SR ZEAALHE
BRAEEEMRR - BREASIN_-F—
—FENAZThBER - MEEEHIIER]
Sh - KR BB TF -

1T AR 5 A i =T 81 K AN 5= [ SR AR O (7]
H b fE A AT 81X T i RTT 2 2 P A B X
BMABRTZBRNA  TEBBARRIE
{al 5 PR 2 BT AN 2 30% © FRIEE AR AR
RRBRAS LitE  SRIRBERE BN
LR AT 215 A B B 17 68 4R 4% 8 B pE 1 &
R AR AYEAE AR AR 81X h 2 RE A
(BHREREITE - FHEERITEZBRE)
MASEEERSEERTRAETZRN
mY - TRBEXAARNEHAREHTR
N21% °
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

166

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
and the amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share of the
Company on the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

28.

BREGTERROERE 2

BRERTE ()

The following share options were outstanding under the TR A FE NI ZI TN RITE B
Share Option Scheme during the year: Pt
Number of share options EREE E Price of the
Company’ s
Forfeited/ Exercise shares at
cancelled priceof  grant date
At 1 April Granted  Exercised during At 31 March share  of options***
Name or category 2014 during during the year 2015 Date of grant options* RERE
of participants R=E-mE the year theyear EREH/ W-F-1E of share options* Exercise period of share options BRE R
SaEHLIER mA-A EREH FRATE 2 ZREt-B  BRECELAS BREZTEDH ZiTRE  ARARE™
HKS A7 HKS %7
per share &R per share Bk
Directors £
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, 150,000 - (150,000) - - 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
Mickey Z2-CE-RtZE ZZ-RE-R-BEZE--EN\AZTAB
ReuksrE 150,000 - (150,000 - - 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1,196 119
ZT-ZE-AtREE ZE-RE-A-BECRC-FACTNE
150,000 - - - 150,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.19% 119
Z5-=5-A+8R ZE-RE-F-AECEC-E/\AZT/\A
72,000 - (72,000) - - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 Augus 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-PmE-A+AA ZE-ME-RABECEZC-ENACTAA
54,000 - - - 54,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Z3-mE-AtAR ZR-RE-A-BEZE--ENACTAB
54,000 - - - 54,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.67
“Z-PE-AtAR ZE-~E-B-RAEZE--ENAZt/A
- 72,000 - - 72,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-15-AthA ZE-RE-RTAREZZ--ENAZT/A
- 54,000 - - 54,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-n5-AthA ZE-~E-R-RAEZEC-§NAZTNA
- 54,000 - - 54,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z5-15-AthA ZE-tE-A-REZZ--E/\AZt/R
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, 51,000 - (51,000) - - 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
Helen “Z-ZE-A+=R —EZ-BE-R-RAE-E--§/\AZt/R
EARLL 54,000 = (54,000) = = 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1,196 119
“Z-=5-RtRR Z3-mE-R-RAE-EC-FNAZT/A
54,000 - - - 54,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
ZE-=5-BtRR ZE3-RE-B-AEZEC-§NAZTNA
200,000 - (200,000) - - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZZ-mE-A+AR ZE-ME-AREEZE--ENAZT/A
150,000 - - - 150,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-PE-Rt5R ZE-RE-A-AZZEC-FNAZTNA
150,000 - - - 150,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-PE-AtRE ZE-RE-R-RAEZEC-§NAZTNA
- 200,000 - - 200,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
Z5-15-AthE ZT-RE-AHhAZ3=-§N\A-tNA
- 150,000 - - 150,000 19 January 2015 1January2016to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-15-AthA —E-"E-fA-RE-E--§\A-T/\H
- 150,000 - - 150,000 19 January 2015 1January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-n5-AthB ZE3-tE-B-RAEZEC-§NAZT/A
FEBESEBRAT FI| 2015 167
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

28. BRETEIRRERE &)

Share option scheme (continued) BRELTE (F)
Number of share options EREZ E Price of the
Company’ s
Forfeited/ Exercise shares at
cancelled priceof  grant date
At 1 April Granted  Exercised during At 31 March share  of options***
Name or category 2014 during during the year 2015 Date of grant options* RERE
of participants R-E-mE the year theyear ERREK/ R-F-EF of share options* Exercise period of share options BRE RUAEZ
SRERALER mA-A EREH ERfifE 2 ZREt-B  BRECELAS BREZTEDM ZiTRE  ADARE™
HKS # 1 HKS 7
per share B per share B}
Directors (continued)
2 (9
Mr. Kimmel, Philip Brian 150,000 - - - 150,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
ARARE Z3-C5-At=R ZZ-ME-A-BEZE--EN\AZT/R
150,000 - - - 150,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.19% 119
ZZ-=5-RtRR ZE-mE-R-AE-EC-FNAZT/A
150,000 - - - 150,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z2-ZE-AtRR ZZ-RF-R-BEZEC-EN\A-TAB
240,000 - - - 240,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“5-RE-At/B ZE-WE-A+AREZE--FNAZTAR
180,000 - - - 180,000 16 January 2014 1January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZZ-PE-At5R ZE-RE-A-AZZEC-FNAZT/A
180,000 - - - 180,000 16 January 2014 1January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-BtRR ZE3-RE-B-RAEZEC-§NAZTNA
- 200,000 - - 200,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z2-R5-AthE Z2-RE-AHhBES--§NA-tNA
- 150,000 - - 150,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z3-15-BthA ZZ-7E-A-RAEZEZ--5N\A=t/\R
- 150,000 - - 150,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“Z-R5-RthB ZE3-tE-F-AEZEC-§NAZTNA
Mr. Wong Hel-chiu 120,000 - - - 120,000 15 January 2013 1January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
BEREL Z$-=%-BtRR -Z-RE-A-BE=Z--§N\A=t/R
160,000 - - - 160,000 16 January 2014 16January20 41028Augus t 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-REF-At/R ZE-ME-R+AREZE--FNAZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 1January20 510 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Z3-RE-A+AR Z3-RE-A-REZEC-F/\AZT/A
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 1January2016to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-mE-RtRB ZE3-~E-R-REZEC-FNAZTNA
- 160,000 - - 160,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 Augus t 2021 1.250 1.25
ZF-R5-AthE ZZ-RE-AHRBEZE--SNAZTAR
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-1E-AthA ZE-~E-B-REZE--§/\AZt/R
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-15-AtnB ZE-tE-A-AZZEC-FNAZT/A
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 28. BREFTEIR RO ERTE (&)
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Share option scheme (continued) BRELE ()
Number of share options EREZ E Price of the
Company’ s
Forfeited/ Exercise shares at
cancelled priceof  grant date
At 1 April Granted  Exercised during At 31 March share  of options***
Name or category 2014 during during the year 2015 Date of grant options* RERE
of participants R-E-mE the year theyear ERREK/ R-F-EF of share options* Exercise period of share options BRE RUAEZ
SRR ALER mA-A EREH ERfifE 2 ZREt-B  BRECELAS BREZTEDH ZiTRE  ARARE™
HKS # 1 HKS 7
per share B per share B}
Directors (continued)
2 (9
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, 90,000 - - - 90,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
Anthony, 85, /P “3-Z5-A+=A ZEZ-mE-R-REZE--§/\AZt)R
BkERE 90,000 - = = 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
REREE ATHL Z2-ZE-fTRHR ZZ-BE-R-BEZEC-EM\AZT/R
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 1.19
Z2-ZE-AtRER ZZ-RF-R-BE-E--EN\A-TAB
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“5-RE-At/B ZE-WE-A+ARE-E--FN\A-+/R
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1mew2m5w28Awm 2021 1.580 1.57
ZZ-PE-A+5R ZE-RE-R-AZ-EC-FNAZT/A
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1mew206m28Awm 2021 1.580 1.57
Z2-ME-ATAE ZB-RE-R-BEZEC-EN\AZTAB
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
Z2-R5-AthE ZE-RE-AHABEZS=-§N\AZtNA
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“Z-15-AthA —E-~"E-B-RAEZE--§NAZt/A
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z2-RE-ATNE ZB-tE-R-BEZEC-EN\AZTR
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 120,000 - - - 120,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
Bt ZE-ZE-ATZH ZZ-BE-R-BEZEC-EN\AZTB
120,000 - - - 120,000 15 January 2013 1January 20141028 Augus t 2021 1.196 1.19
Z3-Zf-AtRR Z-BE-R-BE-E--FN\AZTAB
120,000 - - - 120,000 15 January 2013 1January20 510 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“Z-=5-fA+7R —E-RF-F-AEZE--§N\AZt/\A
160,000 - - - 160,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-PmE-A+AA ZE-mE-RRRECZC-ENACTAA
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-PE-AtAR ZE3-RE-R-RAEZEC-SNAZTNA
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-PE-A+RR ZE-~E-B-REZE--ENAZ1/R
- 160,000 - - 160,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-R5-AthA ZE-RE-RTAREZZ--ENAZTAA
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 125
ZE-R5-AthB ZE-~E-B-REZEC-§NAZT/A
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25

Z2-RE-ATAA ZE-tE-R-RECEC-SMACTAA
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

28. BRETEIRRERE &)

Share option scheme (continued) BRELTE (F)
Number of share options EREZ E Price of the
Company’ s
Forfeited/ Exercise shares at
cancelled priceof  grant date
At 1 April Granted  Exercised during At 31 March share  of options***
Name or category 2014 during during the year 2015 Date of grant options* RERE
of participants R-E-mE the year theyear ERREK/ R-F-EF of share options* Exercise period of share options BRE RUAEZ
SRERALER mA-A FRE ERfifE 2 ZREt-B  BRECELAS BREZTEDM ZiTRE  ADARE™
HKS # 1 HKS 7
per share B per share B}
Directors (continued)
2 (9
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 90,000 = = = 90,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
EREEE “3-Z5-A+=A ZEZ-mE-R-RAEZE--§/\AZt)R
90,000 - - B 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1,19 119
ZZ-=5-RA+tRR —E-mE-R-AE-EC-FNAZT/A
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z2-ZE-AtRER ZZ-RF-R-BEZEC-ENAZTAB
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“5-RE-At/B ZE-WE-A+ARE-E--FN\A-tAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZZ-PE-A+5R ZE-RE-A-AZ-EC-FNAZT/A
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-ME-ATAE ZB-RE-R-BEZEC-EN\AZTAB
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z2-R5-AthE ZB-RE-AtABE-S--§NA-tNA
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
“Z-15-AthA —E-~E-B-RAEZE--§NAZt/A
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1January2017to28Augus 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-15-RthA ZE3-tE-R-AZZEC-§NAZTNA
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, 90,000 - (90,000) - - 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
Steven Z2-CE-ATZH ZZ-BE-A-BEZEC-EN\AZTAB
ATI%E 90,000 - (90,000) - - 15 January 2013 1January20 41028Augus t 2021 1.196 1.19
Z3-Zf-AtRR Z-BE-R-BE-E--EN\AZTAB
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1January20 510 28 August 2021 1.196 1.19
Z3-=-BtRR Z3-RE-A-REZE--EM\AZH/R
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16January2014to28Augus 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-PmE-A+AA ZE-mE-RARECRC-ENACTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-PE-AtAR ZE3-RE-R-AEZEC-§NAZTNA
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
ZZ-PE-A+7R ZE-~E-B-REZEC--E/AZ1/A
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-15-AthA ZE-RE-RTAREZZ--ENACTA
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 125
“2-R5-AthE ZZ-RE-R-BE-E--EN\AZHAB
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z5-15-AthA ZE-tE-A-BEZZ--5N\AZt/R
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

28.

BREGTERROERE 2

Share option scheme (continued) BRELE ()
Number of share options EREZ E Price of the
Company’ s
Forfeited/ Exercise shares at
cancelled priceof  grant date
At 1 April Granted  Exercised during At 31 March share  of options***
Name or category 2014 during during the year 2015 Date of grant options* RERE
of participants R-E-mE the year theyear ERREK/ R-F-EF of share options* Exercise period of share options BRE RUAEZ
SRR ALER mA-A EREH ERfifE 2 ZREt-B  BRECELAS BREZTEDH ZiTRE  ARARE™
HKS # 1 HKS &7
per share B per share B}
Directors (continued)
2 (9
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 60,000 - - - 60,000 13 January 2012 13 January 2012 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.95
REELT Z3-Zf-At=R ZT-ZE-AtZREE--§N\AZtNA
45,000 - - - 45,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.9
Z3-Z-Ft=H ZE-ZF-A-AECE-F\AZTNR
45,000 - - - 45,000 13January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 0.95
Z2-CE-AtZH ZZ-RE-R-BEZE--EN\A-TAB
120,000 - - - 120,000 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 1.196 1.19
Z2-ZE-AtREE ZE-ZF-ATREBECTC-ENACTNA
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.19% 119
ZZ-=5-A+RR —E-mE-R-AZ-EC-FNAZT/A
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“Z-=5-RBtRA ZE3-RE-F-AE-EC-§NAZTNA
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“5-RE-At/B ZE-WE-A+AREZE--FNA-TAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Z3-ME-AtAR ZE-RE-A-REZE--50\AZH/A
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-RE-A+~A —Z-~E-A-RE-E--F\A-T/\H
- 120,000 - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-nE-AthA ZE-RE-ATABEZE--ENAZT/A
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1January20 610 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
:éﬁ_ﬂi_ﬂﬂlﬁ 3 E-A-REZE--FN\A-tN\A
- 90,000 - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“Z-R5-RtnA ZE3-t5-R-AE-EC-§NAZTNA
6,079,000 3,180,000 (857,000) - 8,402,000
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AWARD SCHEME (continued)

28. BRETEIRRERE &)

Share option scheme (continued) BRELTE (F)
Number of share options EREZ E Price of the
Company’ s
Forfeited/ Exercise shares at
cancelled priceof  grant date
At 1 April Granted  Exercised during At 31 March share  of options***
Name or category 2014 during during the year 2015 Date of grant options* RERE
of participants R-E-mE the year theyear ERREK/ R-F-EF of share options* Exercise period of share options BRE RUAEZ
SRERALER mA-A EREH ERfifE 2 ZREt-B  BREZELAS BREZTEDM ZiTRE  ADARE™
HKS # 1 HKS &7
per share B per share B}
Other employees Hﬂﬁ{E%
In aggregate A4 474,000 = (46,000) (32,000) 396,000 13January 2012 13January2012t028Augus t 2021 0972 09
ZR-CE-AtZH ZR-CE-RtZHECEC-HNAZTNA
748,000 - (214,000) (84,000) 450,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
ZE-ZE-At=R ZEF-=E-B-REZE--§/\AZt/R
3,584,000 - (2,106,000) (194,000 1,284,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
ZZ-Z5-Rt=R —Z-mE-R-AE-E-FNAZT/A
165,000 - (30,000) - 135,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
Z2-—5-f1=H —E-Rf-f-RAE-T--E\ATNH
2,120,000 - (744,000) (124,000 1,252,000 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z3-ZEF-AtRR ZT-CE-RAtRAZECEC-HNAZTAA
3,467,000 - (1,890,000) (171,000 1,406,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z3-=5-BtRR 3-ME-A-RE-E--EN\AZt/\R
4,508,000 - (18,000) (315,0000 4,170,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
Z2-ZE-AtRE ZZ-RE-A-BEZE--EN\A-T/B
16,000 - - - 15,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.196 1.19
ZE-=£-AtRR ZE-E-R-REZEC-ENAZTNA
1,288,000 - - - 1288,000 16 January 2014 16January2014t028Augus 2021 1.580 1.57
Z3-ME-AtAR ZE-BE-RA+ARECEC-§NAZtNA
966,000 - - - 966,000 16 January 2014 1January2015to28Augus 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-mE-AtRR ZE3-RE-R-AEZEC-§NAZTNA
966,000 - - - 966,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-PE-AtAR ZE-~E-B-REZEC-SNAZT/A
- 1,784,000 - - 1784,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-15-AthA —E-RE-AThBEZE=-EN\A=t/\A
- 1,338,000 - - 1,338,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ-R5-AtnB ZE-~E-R-AEZE-FNAZT/A
- 1,338,000 - - 1,338,000 19 January 2015 1January207to 28Augus t 2021 1.250 1.25
“2-15-AthE ZB-t5-R-BE-Z--FN\A-tNB
18,296,000 4,460,000  (5,048,000) (920,000) 16,788,000
24375000 7,640,000  (5,905,000) (920,000) 25,190,000
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

> The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
grant of the options.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$1.47
per share (2014: HK$1.57 per share).

The 5,905,000 (2014 12,447,000) share options exercised
during the year resulted in the issue of 5,905,000
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital
of approximately HK$591,000 (2014: HK$1,245,000) and
share premium of approximately HK$5,974,000 (2014:
HK$12,010,000), as further detailed in note 27 to the
financial statements. An amount of HK$1,771,000 (2014:
HK$3,330,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise
of the share options.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had
2,865,000, 8,457,000, 6,228,000 and 7,640,000 share
options with exercise prices of HK$0.972, HK$1.196,
HK$1.58 and HK$1.25 per share, respectively, outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme, which altogether
represented approximately 3.7% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 25,190,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
issued share capital of approximately HK$2,519,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$29,771,000 (before
issue expenses).

Bk @%

31 March 2016 R=ZFE—AF=H= H

28. BRESTEI R RM BB & (&)
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R - BEITEARITEBIRES GBI
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

174

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of
276,000 share options with exercise prices of HK$0.972
and HK$1.196 per share were exercised. This resulted in
the issue of 276,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 7,640,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated
at approximately HK$1,128,000 (2014: HK$2,922,000).
The Company recognised share option expense of
HK$3,377,000 (2014: HK$4,493,000) during the year.

The fair value of share options granted during the year was
estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the respective model used for the years ended
31 March 2015 and 2014:

28. IBIRERTEI R R REFE ()

BRERE (B

EREHRAE - B4A H£276,00017 I8 i AE
2 IR 1T B & #R0.9725 7T 2 1.1967 Tt 1
17 - AfmEBEEITAR R T EA276,000

L o

BHE-_ZT—AF=-ZA=+—RALEE"
7,640,000 R EEEE L EQF
B & 51 #91,128,000/8 7L (Z T — Y F :
2,922,000 7L) c FN + A AR EERE
B4 B 2 83,377,000/ 7T (— T — P4 -
4,493,000/ 7T) °

FARHNBREAFELRE LR HER
—IHAR - BB R B R S Ak
e TRIERNBE_ZE—AFR_FT—
ME=A=t—RALFESEAMERAZEN
ZBAER

2015 2014
—E—RE —E—POF

Date of share options granted: #% B H#E B HA -

Volatility (%): Y& 18 (%) :

Risk-free interest rate (%): & &k K R (%) :

Expected life of options (year): B AE 2 FBEAFER (4F) :
Dividend vyield (%): J& 8 3% (%)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.
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19 January 2015 16 January 2014

—E-RF—HA+hH —ZT—MNF—F+/XH

36.44 38.51
1.25 1.90
6.61 7.62

6 4.78
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Share award scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 3 June 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). The
specific objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions of certain employees of any
member of the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

The Board may, from time to time, at its sole discretion
select any employee (the “Selected Employee”) of any
member of the Group for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares
to be awarded to the Selected Employees by taking into
consideration matters including (without limitation) the
general financial condition of the Group and the rank and
performance of the relevant Selected Employee. The Board
is entitled to impose any conditions (including a period of
continued service within the Group after the date of the
final approval by the Board of the total amount of shares
to be awarded to the relevant Selected Employee on a
single occasion pursuant to the Share Award Scheme),
as it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion with
respect to the entitlement of the Selected Employee to the
awarded shares.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to the Selected Employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

Bk @%
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ZEBYVEMR MR ERE CBAREK
REZHRREERTETER 2 KRB MHE
B -EFgnaRREERRAEZER
THEEREMEHR < RENAR DN I
AfEfE (BRRBIERD REF BINE -5
HFEATESTSRTEZBABETEEMNE
B AENRRIE R RREEASAEE
RIS Z HARR)

HEE—FTRHEBROHEEETSRIER
0 2R EDFT B3 H O BUD F BB B AR B TR
EEITIRAN10%  AITNGE—FRY - 1R
BERD R ERTETRENRNHBA K
B TMSHRBAARTREFEITRAMN1%
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28.

29.

176

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 28. BRETEIR KM EBE (o)
AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share award scheme (continued) B> BT E (&)
The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of 1D RENFTEIZERNIRMBBE BT A
the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date and such HESSARTRERIECZHE UREEAR
date of early termination as determined by the Board. HE) R IE o
Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the 1D BT & 2 FIBER A AR AT
Company’s announcement dated 3 June 2010. —ZFNA=ZB2RM .
Details of the shares awarded during the year ended 31 HE-_ZT-—NE=ZA=1+—HBILFEERE
March 2014 are as follows: ZBOEFBOT

Number of Fair value of shares
Date of share award shares awarded awarded (HK$)

[REgr eExRHERMGZ

% 17 22 Bh st 21 A & R E A¥E (Br)
24 January 2014 —ZF—UF— A =—+WMH 1,468,000 2,319,000
The 1,468,000 shares were awarded to selected employees 21,468,000l IR0 % T AL B 2B F &
of the Group and none of them was a director of the 8 AMEZSEER/RALNFIESR - BR4
Company. The fair value of shares awarded was measured H%ﬁz/&i@\ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@]ﬁ% SRRV
at the share price of the Company of HK$1.58 each on the R E G 68/ TLAT & ©
date of the share award.
No shares were awarded under the Share Award Scheme HE_Z—FAF=-FA=1+—HIFEHKER
for the year ended 31 March 2015. RS S B 2132 H AT [R5 o
RESERVES 29. f#&
(@) Group (a) ZA&£E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R MR

31 March 2016 R—FE—AF=H=—+—H

29. RESERVES (continued) 29. fi#fE (&)
(b) Company (b) ZA&AIQFH
Share Capital Share
premium redemption Contributed option  Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total

BBk BARDRE MRS BREGE REEA it
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000
Thn TR TEr  ThAr  TER TAT

At1 April 2018 R=E—=FMA—H 101,841 2,965 66,982 6,306 147,093 325,187
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year
FRENRAEE2ANERR - - -

Issue of shares from exercise of share options (note 27)

88,118 88,118

RfTeRRENET 2R (Hzk2r) 15,340 - - (3,330) - 12,010
Issue of shares from award of shares (note 27)

RELRIAMET R (HzE2r) 2,173 - - - - 2,178
Shares repurchased (note 27) BRI (ik27) (18,847) 1242 - - (1242)  (18,847)
Final 2013 dividend declared and paid (note 13)

BER-T-=FRIKRE (Wi13) = - - - (34505 (34,508)
Special 2013 dividend declared and paid (note 13)

BER=E-=FHAIRE (MFH13) - - = - (13802 (13,802)
Interim 2014 dividend paid (note 13) ER ~E—WERHRS (Hii13) - - - - (22810 (22,810)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments (note 28)

BRNEREE AR LR 2508 (W28) - - - 4,493 - 4,493

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014
A B-ME=A=T-AR-ZF-MENA-A 100,507 4,207 66,982 7,469 162,852 342,017

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

ERENRAEELARELR - - - - 978 91778
Issue of shares (note 27) B17R 7 (HfiEr) 7,745 = = (1,771) = 5,974
Shares repurchased (note 27) BB (7 (HizF27) (5,961) 461 = = (461) (5,961)
Final 2014 dividend declared and paid (note 13)

BER-E-MERERE (H:H13) - - = - (15201)  (15201)
Special 2014 dividend declared and paid (note 13)

EER_Z-MERRIRS (H13) = - - - (6910) (6,910)
Interim 2015 dividend (note 13)

EN-E-nEPHRS (1) - - - - (19285 (19,285)
Recognition of equity-based payments (note 28)

AAEE X 2R (Hfit2s) - - - 3,877 - 3,377
At 31 March 2015 R=E-R&5=A=1-H 102,291 4,668 66,982 9,075 212, 395,787
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29. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)

The profit of HK$91,776,000 (2014: HK$88,118,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2015 included dividend
income of HK$100,000,000 (2014: HK$100,000,000)
received from a subsidiary of the Company.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in September 1994, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION

178

On 1 September 2014, the Group entered into an
investment agreement with two independent third parties
to subscribe 51% equity interests in Yingfeng Industrial
(Hongkong) Co., Limited and its subsidiary (collectively
known as “Yingfeng”) at a cash consideration of HK$10,000
(the “Acquisition”). Yingfeng is engaged in the manufacture
and trading of soles in Vietnam. The Acquisition was made
as part the Group’s strategy to maintain stable supply of
soles for its production.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling

interests in Yingfeng at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of Yingfeng’s identifiable net assets.
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29. s (&)

(b) E2F (&)

RBEE-_ZT—RHE=A=+—H81t
&F Z z % 191,776,000 Tt (= =
— PO 4 : 88,118,000/ jt) B # B
AARWEBRAKERZEE KA
100,000,000/ T (= & — @ F :
100,000,000 7T) ©

ARBZHABBRTIERE- NN
FNA EEEERFTWEN B L FR
MZAFEBARNRARARBZETE
EMERTRMD  EEERE -

30. EHEH

R-ZZE—MNFHLAE—RA AEEEMEE
VEZHITUBEBAZ UBHEERE
10,0008 TREDEEZE (F8) ARAA
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31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 30. #¥%86f #)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NENWEBBRNABNEERERATE
Yingfeng as at the date of acquisition were as follows: LU
Fair value
recognised
Note on acquisition
B &E NG A NS ]
HK$’'000
FHEIT
Plant and equipment &&= & 2% 14 10,460
Inventories 7 & 2,853
Accounts receivable fEUBRIA 1,829
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
A RIR - e REMEKGRIE 2,101
Cash and cash equivalents IR & N 5 RIRETEE 167
Accounts payable fE{SBRIE (807)
Accrued liabilities and other payables fExt & & K& H b fEff BRI (765)
Due to non-controlling interests J&{<f FF#5 AL #E 5 (5,299)
Loans from non-controlling interests 3F{2A%#E 35 B 3K (11,025)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value &2/AF{EA] #5& E FEAZE 20
Non-controlling interests 3F12 A% # %5 (10)
Satisfied by cash AR & X £+t 10
An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Acquisition is as follows:
WEEBZHSREDTOT -
HK$’'000
Fi& T
Cash consideration 31 & X (& (10)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 2 W EE R4 MIEEZRIER 167
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the Acquisition
WER e RREeEREE 2 FHSRAE 157
Since its acquisition, Yingfeng contributed HK$4,524,000 AR  DEREBE_T—RAF=-HA=7
to the Group’s revenue and loss of HK$180,000 to the —BIEFEAAREE W EB4,524,000%
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2015. TC R AR A M B B 180,000/ 7T 2 E518 °
Had the business combination taken place at the beginning WMEBEHREVET ASENFE
of the year, the revenue and net profit of the Group Iz & 48R 5 Bl &2,380,177,0000 7T &

for the year would have been HK$2,380,177,000 and 88,872,000/ 7T °

HK$88,872,000, respectively.
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. XAREE
As at 31 March 2015, the Company had provided corporate R-_TE—RF=ZA=+—H  ARApESR
guarantees to certain banks for banking facilities provided THIEB AR RERITRE A T IRITIR M
to certain of its subsidiaries. These banking facilities had NAER - RBEAR ZFRITHEZ
been utilised to the extent of approximately HK$2,665,000 BB A EE 4 52,665,0008 T (ZF—NW
(2014: HK$4,545,000) as at the end of the reporting period. F : 4,545,0000/87C) °
32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. MEHNILH
(a) As lessor (a) fEAHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note AEBREBREESHATHEBEEIRSE
16) under operating lease arrangements, with leases M (M1:516) @ A ZEI 2 HENF
negotiated for terms ranging from two to five years. MEEZRE - BT —RRINERTE
The terms of the leases generally also required the EXfRES -

tenants to pay security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMERR AEEREEBFEIZ
total future minimum lease receivables under non- Z AR E R 2 KRR FEAL
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling WK BEE 2 B BB R -
due as follows:
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-IF e usfeS

HK$’000 T T HK$'000 /87T

Within one year —F R 7,485 6,767

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
E_EZFERF (BEEEMF) 5,819 8,221
13,304 14,988
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

The Company did not have any operating

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

32. KEBNZH »)

(b)

EREEA

AEERBEEENLRHEASHET
T REF  HORITIBHPNTF—
U

Rk Bk - A% EIR BN ] B
SRR RRERONRBE )
BIERIT -

Group

AEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—JOF
HK$’000 T &t HK$’000 F%& 7T
Within one year —F R 13,044 19,264

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F_EZFRF (BHEEEMF) 11,220 4,044
24,264 23,308

In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain
retail shops are based on the higher of a fixed rental
and contingent rent based on sales of these retail
shops pursuant to the terms and conditions as set
out in the respective rental agreements. As the future
sales of these retail shops could not be accurately
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not
been included above and only the minimum lease
commitments have been included in the above table.

lease

arrangements as at the end of the reporting period (2014:

Nil).

Bo - REBEFN SR E W E 2 GRR K
i ETEEEHZEEHEOES
REEHEXZETEEHHERT
B2gAEE (UBRSERE) BE -
MR T EEEEEEZETEEM A
KIHER W ERIBEBEABAIA
M MERBREBELFE -

SR ARRAEEMEEHOLH

(ZF—m%F : §\) -
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33. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 32(b) above, the Group had contracted for the
following capital commitments:

182

(i)

(i

(ii)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments in respect of management fees payable
in relation to certain land in Vietnam falling due as
follows:

33.

i

B £ P TE32(0) A FF il 2 A8 & A9 A I
S - REMITHL N INEARASERT LA -

() PBWEEE - A5 B 5] HR 8
R 2 T b BB B
I

2015 2014
—ZT-EfF —T—NF
HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 F#& T

Within one year —F R 1,372 566

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
FE_ZFELF (BEERMF) 5,489 2,263
After five years FL4F A4 64,669 15,447
71,530 18,276

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments in respect of investments in subsidiaries
of HK$131,433,000 (2014: HK$183,690,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
capital commitments in respect of property, plant and
equipment as follows:

(i) RBEHR AEEE@ERENBEA
a2 # & A131,433,0008 7T (ZF—
PU4E @ 183,690,000/ 7T) °

(i) NH|EHR > XKEEEVE - BF

RBEEHZEAREEDT
2015 2014
—E-hHE —E—mEF

HK$’000 T+ T HK$'000 F8 7T

Contracted but not provided for construction of
factory buildings
EETAMEREHE < B N E TR

49,307 11,906

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

34.

(iv)  Other commitments

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

33. &iE (&)
(iv) E b scdE

2015 2014
—E—-HF —E—OF

HK$’000 T % T HK$'000 F/8 7T

Contracted but not provided for 2 5] #4718 K &5

— establishment of production plants in Mainland China

FAFR B A 40 58 37 A EE TS 132,846 132,846

— lease of parcels of land in Vietnam
2SR L 3 3t 35 22,037 35,394
154,883 168,240

The Company did not have any significant commitments as
at the end of the reporting period (2014: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the year,
the Group paid rental expenses of approximately
HK$972,000 (2014: HK$981,000) to Kingmaker
Footwear Company Limited, a related company of
which Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey and Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, directors and shareholders
of the Company, are also directors and shareholders,
and of approximately HK$6,000 (2014: HK$6,000) to
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey.

R 2R
(=

EHIR - AR B LB EMEARASE

T—F &) o

34. BEEARF

(a)

PRt S R R E A I D Frafil 2 2
S9N REERFEANS R EEE R FME
ERERODERAAXNHESERLY
972,000/ 7T (=& — 4 : 981,000
BIT)  MARGE TESRRREE
BEAEREFHRL TN BEZARE
EFRE - R AIBRGUHE 5L A 496,000
B (ZE—U4F : 6,00087T) °
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 4. BBAERZ (&)

BALANCES (continued)

(@) (continued) (@)

During the year, the Group also paid rental expenses
of Nil (2014: HK$220,000) in respect of the Group’s
leasing office premise to Ms. Chen Zi Yun, Fiona Apple
(formerly as Chen Hung Chun, Fiona) approximately
HK$38,000 (2014: HK$295,000) in respect of the
Group’s leasing staff quarter and office premise
to Ms. Chen Kuan Hsun, Sonja and approximately
HK$38,000 (2014: HK$75,000) in respect of the
Group’s leasing staff quarter to Ms. Chen Ying Ju.
Ms. Chen Zi Yun, Fiona Apple, Ms. Chen Kuan Hsun,
Sonja and Ms. Chen Ying Ju are the daughters of Mr.
Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey and Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the market conditions existing at the time when
the respective rental agreements were entered into.

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b)
Group:

(%)

FRAEENEREHER L AME
MR (FRITE) MEXAES
BHEZTH T (ZF—MUF : 220,000
) WHHEEE IHBESMAYER
FR T B /)M E 2 R 4 B 4938,00058
7T (ZZT— P4 : 2950008 ) * &
MEEETHEE MR/ ESFHE
B A #9388,0008 7T (=& — U4 :
75,000/ 70) © BRF=/ME - BRE B
/)NIE e TR B 40/ N 0B ) A BER U S A
EERTTHLR °

ZEHEBRAN2ETLEHEER
FERZMAMERE

LU BB AR S MER EMRAE
1AAEFTER ZHER S o

REBAREEASHRM

2015 2014
—E—-hF —E—OF

HK$’000 T+ T HK$'000 T 7T

Short term employee benefits %2 HifE & 1& 7 9,388 9,167
Post-employment benefits & f 14 1& 7 36 30
Equity-settled share option expense MAREZS 45 E 7 BERRAERT X 945 811
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

XiaHREERABNMMNE T 10,369 10,008

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

(0 The amounts due to non-controlling interests are (©
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(¢) (continued)

Loans from non-controlling interests amounting
to HK$22,491,000 (2014: Nil) are considered as
quasi-equity loans and included in non-controlling
interests. The loans are unsecured, interest-free and
not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months
from the end of the reporting period.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34. BEEF RSB ()

() (#&)

JE 12 A% #E 25 B 722,491,000 7T (=
T—NF: T) wEABEURKER
REFTAFZERERAN - ZERBE
TR 8RBTSR RS ARE
SRR+ @A RNEE -

35. BERE s zem T A

FEMEeMIARKEHRZEEER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Group rEH
2015 -
Financial assets MEEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets
BEREK AHHE Total
WA MBEE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TERT TET
Available-for-sale investments
AEHERE - 892 892
Accounts and bills receivable
[EWERIE R Z & 240,773 - 240,773
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
FPATEMNIE - RE REMBKEE MBEE 7,497 = 7,497
Restricted bank balance
X EIRITHE 1,695 - 1,695
Cash and cash equivalents
RekEFRREER 436,407 - 436,407
686,372 892 687,264
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

186

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

35. ERE s zem T E (@)

ERFEMTARNRERRZEEER T

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (%
follows (continued):
Group AEE
2015 —E—EHF
Financial liabilities BEEE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss - liabilities at
held for trading amortised
RAFEFA cost
BRziE REBHEAATE Total
8- BEEE ZHEaE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT
Accounts and bills payable fEfTERIE &k Z & = 269,544 269,544
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and
other payables st AEFTEEREMEMNKEBE M EEE - 100,440 100,440
Due to non-controlling interests J&f JFHE AR #E 25 - 1,334 1,334
Derivative financial instruments #T4£ &8 T A 1,277 - 1,277
1,277 371,318 372,595
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. REREI D 2EMIT R (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EEemITARNREARCEEERNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (&) :

follows (continued):

Group AEE

2014 —FT—mEF

Financial assets BREE
Financial

assets at fair

value through Available-
profit or loss — for-sale
held for trading Loans and financial
BATERA receivables assets
B B 75 BERK AHHE Total
BE —FHEEE e R HMBEE e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FET
Available-for-sale investments
AfHERE - - 1,490 1,490
Accounts and bills receivable
N BRIA R R 1R - 245,573 - 245,573
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
STATERRUE © ke REMEKRIE  MIBEE - 9,139 - 9,139
Derivative financial instruments
fTHESRIA 1,072 - - 1,072
Restricted bank balance
RRHIRITAEER - 2,044 - 2,044
Cash and cash equivalents
BehERRELER - 423,871 - 423,871
1,072 680,627 1,490 683,189
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. RERESZEMT A (&)
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EEemITARNREARZEEERNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (&) :

follows (continued):

Group rEE

2014 —E—OF

Financial liabilities BEEaE
Financial

liabilities at fair

188

value through Financial
profit or loss — liabilities at
held for trading amortised
BATERA cost
B M REHEKAHE Total
Aff - #HEEE ZIBaRE e
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET
Accounts and bills payable B 8ETE k Z & = 191,940 191,940
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and
other payables
AR EREREGENREZ KRR - 83,301 83,301
Due to non-controlling interests JEf JFHE AR #E 25 - 4,855 4,855
Derivative financial instruments £74 4 & T & 2,215 = 2,215
2,215 280,096 282,311
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

35. ERE o zemITE &)

CATEGORY (continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EEemITARNREARCEEERNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (&) :
follows (continued):
Company NN
Financial assets MKEE
2015 2014
—E-HEF —T -
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
B R EWRIE B K EWGRIA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Due from subsidiaries F&UZ /& A~ 7z I8 375,074 465,240
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M5 R SIEE 389 376
375,463 465,616
Financial liabilities MkAasE
2015 2014
—E—AF —ET—mF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost

amortised cost

REBHEHRAFTE L SE AN RHE
2K a s 2B aE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET

Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and

other payables

FFAETEEREMEMNERBE MBEE 805 805
Due to subsidiaries FE{IHIE A FIFIE = 120,676
805 121,481
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. R T Az AFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement THRINTAEEEHMIAZATEFERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEHESIEE
Fair value measurement using
AT EH B
Quoted prices Significant
in active observable
markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2)
RERBmIEZ BEARAEERA Total
HE (E—H) HiE (B=&) &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHATT FHTT FHETT
31 March 2015: ZE—hF=A=+—H :
Available-for-sale investments: A] it H&E&E :
Listed investments Em#%#& 892 - 892
31 March 2014: —ZE—NF=A=+—H :
Available-for-sale investments: A] i HH & & :
Listed investments Em#%#& 1,490 = 1,490
Derivative financial instruments $74 & g L E - 1,072 1,072
1,490 1,072 2,562
Liabilities measured at fair value: BRAFEHEZEE
Fair value measurement using
AP E R ER
Quoted prices Significant
in active observable
markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2)
RIERMIEZ BERAEEGA Total
HE (F—R) i (F=&) &5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHETT
31 March 2015: ZE—HF=A=+—H:
Derivative financial instruments 74 & 8 T A - 1,277 1,277
31 March 2014: ZF—F=A=+—H :
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 &l T B - 2,215 2,215
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36.

37.

38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Company did not have any financial assets or financial
liabilities measured at fair values as at 31 March 2015 and
2014.

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2014: Nil).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@) As at 31 March 2015, payable for additions of items
of property, plant and equipment of HK$27,536,000
(2014: HK$31,784,000) and addition of prepaid land
lease payments of HK$5,185,000 (2014: Nil) were not
yet settled.

(b) As at 31 March 2014, the Group had recorded
deposit of HK$10,000,000 for prepaid land lease
payments, which remained unpaid and was included
in accrued liabilities and other payables.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and time deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivable, other receivables, accounts and bills payable
and other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

36.

37.

38.

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2016 R=—F—AF=H=+—H

EMTECAFEER &)

W=F-AFR-F-ME=A=+—8"
ARFLEAR I EERT B R EADT
EHE -

TR MBEERMBRERETANATE
AETARE-REE-_RZHAEE - TE
BASBLE=4E (ZFT—0OF : &) -

mERERERME

FEFRRERS

@ R=—ZZTE—ARAF=ZA=+—H'H&
EVE BMEERREBEEBEENE
1827,536,000/% T (= & — I & :
31,784,000 7t) RIE i &R
TH 3 hn5,185,000/ 7T (ZF — PO 4F -
) KRB °

by R—T-—MNWE=Z/A=Z+—H" K
EEHESENTIHBAERERS
10,000,000 7T * & KB AR 2
AT BEREMEMNIRIE -

MEEEEREBERBE

AEEZTESHMTA  BRITEATAN B8
RRENREHER - ZFEMTAEZETER
BERRBAKREEBEE - NEEAZIEH
REERETCHMMBEERAE  WE
WiRIE R R - EMEIEFIR - LR ENRE
ARERREMEMNRRS -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

192

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is
to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations. It is, and has been throughout the year under
review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material interest-bearing borrowings
and believes its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. However,
considering the appreciation of RMB, the Group has
entered into forward currency contracts to manage the
foreign currency risk arising from the Group’s operations.
Moreover, the majority of the Group’s operating assets
are located in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.
As the Group’s financial statements are reported in Hong
Kong dollars, there will be a translation credit/(charge) to
the exchange fluctuation reserve as a result of the RMB
appreciation/(depreciation).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities
and forward currency contracts).

RIS HRaR MR

31 March 2015 R =—F—AF=H=+—H

38. BIEREEEEREE &)

SNERLER ()

TRIREMBEMERERTEZER
T AEEZEHRADEN (BEBEERA
& REREEANZATEED) HEE
HIRARBEXRAIGEAEHR B8 2 HU&
o

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
ARMBER BRBADE A
LA (THE) 2@, i)
% HK$'000 T 7T
2015 —E—HF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
BT HARBRE 5 5,837
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB
BT AREHE (5) (5,837)
2014 —ZT—MF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
BT ARBERE 5 4,540
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB
WATH AREAE (5) (4,540)
Credit risk FERR

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment of
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

AEBERAMEEREERIFZEFEN
X5 REBZHRBIAHMIMEEGTRE
TES2EFHAREERERE - itih -
FEWEREGEASEEERB AR
R ZEFPHEEERTE  MBAMREZE
BEWELHEEEMRSIBEE - BREH
BRZEEGRTRE REGREFEITHA
ZEEFE  ASEMASZERRARER
FMEIKIE o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

194

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balance, available-for-sale investments, other receivables
and derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company is
also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note
31 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivable are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

None of the Group’s other receivables is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets are included in other
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., accounts and bills receivable) and the projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk. The maturity of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
was less than one year. In addition, the Company also
provided corporate guarantee in respect of banking
facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to HK$189,000,000
(2014: HK$189,000,000), of which HK$2,665,000 (2014:
HK$4,545,000) had been utilised at 31 March 2015 and
the maturity of the Company’s guarantee was on demand.
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39.

40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 30 April 2015, the Group entered into a letter of
offer with an independent third party to lease a parcel
of land in Vietnam until 2058 at a cash consideration of
US$5,000,000. The transaction was not completed up to
the date of approval of the financial statements. Further
details of the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 April 2015.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2015.
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

REBSH 2 REWE

=
B

Approximate

gross floor
area (sq. m)

Group’s B4 Existing Term of

interest BEEEE use lease
Location ih 2h REBZER (EHK) R A= T
Whole of Block A, Fh 100% 36,947.2 Industrial Medium
Levels 3-7 Block B and EHA I% Fh HA
whole of Block C HEm
situated at Bl &
No.1 Cuizhu Street, RKTERE
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, RIRER19%
Qianshan District, FRR2MR - LFR3-712
Zhuhai City, RARER
Guangdong Province,
The PRC.
Unit Nos. 1401, 1414, 1415 A 100% 330.18  Commercial Medium
and 1416 on Level 14, BERE [EES rh Hf
Metro Plaza, BN
Nos. 183-187 Tianhe KAl &
North Road, RAE#E183-1875%
Tianhe District, ARG EIS1418
Guangzhou, 1401 ~ 1414 ~

Guangdong Province,
The PRC.

1415~ 1416 %
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